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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

OTTAWA, Monday, February 24, 2003
(6)

[English)

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 4:04 p.m., in room 256-S, Centre Block, the
Deputy Chair, the Honourable Senator Keon, presiding.

Members of the committee present. The Honourable Senators
Beaudoin, Chaput, Comeau, Gauthier, Keon, Lapointe, Léger
and Maheu (8).

In attendance: Marie-Eve Hudon, Research Analyst, Library of
Parliament.

Also in attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.
WITNESSES:
From the Department of Justice Canada:

Marc Tremblay, General Counsel and Director, Official
Languages Law Group;

Warren J. Newman, General Counsel, Constitutional and
Administrative Law Section.

The committee continued its study of the operation of the
Official Languages Act and of regulations and directives made
thereunder.

Messrs. Tremblay and Newman answered questions.

It was moved by the Honourable Senator Keon — THAT
Intergovernmental Affairs Minister Stéphane Dion be invited to
appear before the committee on March 24, 2003. The question
being put on the motion, it was adopted.

It was moved by the Honourable Senator Comeau — THAT
Minister Dion’s March 24 appearance before the committee be
televised. Following debate, the question being put on the motion,
it was adopted.

At 6:15 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

PROCES-VERBAL

OTTAWA, le lundi 24 février 2003
(6)

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 16 h 04, dans la piéce 256-S de I’édifice du Centre,
sous la présidence de ’honorable sénateur Keon (président).

Membres du comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Beaudoin, Chaput, Comeau, Gauthier, Keon, Lapointe, Léger
et Maheu (8).

Egalement présente: Marie-Eve Hudon, analyste de la
recherche, Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.
TEMOINS:
Du ministere de la Justice:

M. Marc Tremblay, avocat général et directeur, Groupe du
droit des langues officielles;

M. Warren J. Newman, avocat général, Section du droit
administratif et constitutionnel.

Le comité poursuit son étude de I'application de la Loi sur les
langues officielles, ainsi que des réglements et instructions en
découlant.

MM. Tremblay et Newman répondent aux questions.

L’honorable sénateur Keon propose — QUE le ministre des
Affaires intergouvernementales, M. Stéphane Dion, soit invité a
comparaitre devant le comité le 24 mars 2003. La question, mise
aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Comeau propose — QUE la séance du
24 mars, au cours de laquelle comparaitra le ministre Dion, soit
télévisée. Aprés discussion, la question, mise aux voix, est
adoptée.

A 18 h 15, le comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’'a nouvelle
convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du comité,
Richard Maurel
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Monday, February 24, 2003

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 4:04 p.m., to study and report upon the operation of
the Official Languages Act, and regulations and directives made
thereunder, within those institutions subject to the act, as well as
upon the reports of the Commissioner of Official Languages, the
President of the Treasury Board and the Minister of Canadian
Heritage.

Senator Wilbert J. Keon (Deputy Chairman) in the Chair.

[English]

The Deputy Chairman: It was the wish of honourable senators
that the proceedings today be recorded, and perhaps broadcast.
We did not have approval at the end of the last meeting for this,
so I would raise this matter now before we commence our
meeting. Unfortunately, as events have transpired, I suspect we
cannot not have either broadcasting or recording now for the
early part of the meeting. I did want to raise this matter and ask
the committee members whether they wanted to make an effort to
have this done.

Senator Gauthier: Mr. Chairman, we have authority to televise
our proceedings. We also have the ability to translate and
interpret the proceedings. I tried to reach both the clerk and
yourself this morning, but could not. I am somewhat upset that
we do not have an ongoing policy of televising our proceedings. I
understand that this room is not equipped to accommodate that,
and I have asked the Standing Committee on Internal Economy,
Budgets and Administration to look into this.

Currently, if we do not request it, the proceedings will not be
televised. I believe that we should televise our proceedings as a
matter of normal practice. I recognize that 4:00 p.m. is not the
best time to make this request because the members of the media
all have gone home, but at least our proceedings will be recorded.
We can use that later to help people better understand the issues
the committee is studying. I am upset that we do not have the
television cameras here today. I am not concerned about the
recording because that is done automatically. We will all have
access to the transcript of the proceedings tomorrow.

Honourable senators, I move that, unless otherwise indicated,
the policy of our committee be that we televise all committee
meetings.

[Translation]

Four o’clock is not peak time. The journalists have already left.
If we do not want people to know what we are up to, then we
should meet in the afternoon.

I think we should consider holding these meetings at a more
reasonable time, not at the end of the day, but earlier in the day.

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le lundi 24 février 2003

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui a 16 h 04 pour étudier, afin d’en faire rapport,
l’application de la loi sur les langues officielles, ainsi que des
réglements et instructions en découlant, au sein des institutions
assujetties a la loi, ainsi que les rapports de la commissaire aux
langues officielles, de la présidente du Conseil du Trésor et de la
ministre du Patrimoine canadien.

Le sénateur Wilbert J. Keon (vice-président) occupe le fauteuil.

[Traduction)

Le vice-président: Les sénateurs ont exprimé le souhait que les
délibérations d’aujourd’hui soient enregistrées, peut-étre méme
télédiffusées. Si je souléve la question maintenant, c’est que nous
n’avons pas adopté de motion en ce sens lors de notre derniére
réunion. Malheureusement, je pense qu’il est maintenant
impossible que la premiere partie de la réunion puisse étre
enregistrée ou télédiffusée. Je voulais cependant savoir si les
sénateurs voulaient toujours que nous essayons de faire en sorte
que le reste de la réunion le soit.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Monsieur le président, le comité peut
décider que ses délibérations seront télédiffusées. Et il peut aussi
décider qu’elles soient traduites et que le service d’interprétation
soit offert. J’ai essayé de vous joindre ainsi que le greffier ce
matin, mais je n’y suis pas parvenu. Je comprends mal pourquoi le
comité n’a pas pris pour principe de faire télédiffuser ses
délibérations. Je comprends que cette salle ne posséde pas
I’équipement voulu, et j’ai demandé au comité permanent de la
régie interne, des budgets et de ’administration d’examiner la
question.

A T'heure actuelle, nos délibérations ne sont pas télédiffusées a
moins que nous n’en fassions la demande. Comme il est 16 heures,
je sais que ce n’est sans doute pas le meilleur moment pour faire
cette demande étant donné que les membres des médias sont tous
partis, mais nos délibérations pourraient a tout le moins étre
enregistrées. Ceux qui veulent se renseigner sur les questions
qu’examine le comité pourront s’y reporter plus tard au besoin. Je
regrette beaucoup que les caméras de télévision ne soient pas
présentes aujourd’hui. L’enregistrement se fait de toutes fagons.
Nous aurons acces a la transcription de nos délibérations demain.

Honorables sénateurs, je propose qu’a moins d’indication
contraire, notre comité ait pour principe de faire télédiffuser
toutes ses réunions.

[Frangais]

Ce n’est pas une heure de pointe, 16 heures. Les journalistes
sont partis a cette heure. Si I’on ne veut pas que les gens sachent ce
que nous faisons, alors nous tiendrons nos réunions ’apres-midi.

J’aimerais que 1’on étudie la possibilité de les tenir a une heure
plus convenable, pas en fin de journée, mais au début de celle-ci.
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[English]

The Deputy Chairman: Senator Gauthier, I am sorry that
things have not transpired according to your wishes. At the end of
the meeting today, I will ask for a resolution to have the next
meeting recorded, then the committee members can debate and,
hopefully, approve that. Then it would be straightforward from
there on in.

Senator Gauthier: You may have misunderstood me. Out
proceedings are automatically recorded. I am asking that
the TV cameras be allowed in here. I believe that, in December,
the committee adopted a motion to televise our proceedings.

[Translation)

It is quite common. It is something that we should be in the
habit of doing. I think we need a higher profile.

[English]

The Deputy Chairman: I was referring to television recording of
our last meeting. [ will raise that subject at the end of the meeting,
if that is acceptable to you, Senator Gauthier.

[Translation]

Senator Lapointe: At the last televised meeting, you said that it
had been denied. Did I understand correctly?

[English]

The Deputy Chairman: At this point in time, we require
approval at the end of each meeting to televise the next meeting.
We did not have approval at the end of the last meeting to televise
this meeting, but I will address that at the end of the meeting
today.

Senator Lapointe: Were you given a reason for that?

Senator Gauthier: Mr. Chair, on that point, I believe we have a
standing order to the effect that we can televise. The clerk, with

the authority of the chairman, must advise whoever is responsible.
I do not believe we have to repeat that process for every meeting.

The Deputy Chairman: Senator Gauthier, when the committee
discusses that this afternoon, that could come to pass, however, at
this point in time, we do not have approval to televise.

Honourable senators, Senator Losier-Cool is still convalescing
and has asked me to replace her again today as the chair.

[Translation)

The Deputy Chairman: She will be back on March 24, for the
next meeting.
[English]

Today, our meeting will be shorter than planned. At our last
meeting on February 10, the committee voted to invite
representatives from the Department of Justice and from the

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Sénateur Gauthier, je regrette que tout ne se
soit pas déroulé selon vos souhaits. A la fin de la réunion
d’aujourd’hui, je demanderai que quelqu’un propose
I’enregistrement de notre prochaine réunion. Les membres du
comité pourront débattre la motion et j’espére qu’ils
I’approuveront. Ce sera par la suite la pratique du comité.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Vous m’avez peut-étre mal compris. Nos
délibérations sont automatiquement enregistrées. Je réclame
qu’elles soient télédiffusées. Si je ne m’abuse, le comité a adopté
en décembre une motion en vue de permettre la télédiffusion de
ses audiences.

[Frangais)

Cela se fait communément. C’est une bonne habitude.
J’aimerais avoir un peu plus de visibilité.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Je faisais allusion a la télédiffusion de notre
derniére réunion. Si vous le permettez, sénateur Gauthier, je
souléverai la question a la fin de la réunion.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Lapointe: A la derniére réunion télévisée, vous avez
dit que cela avait été refusé. Ai-je bien compris?

[Traduction)

Le vice-président: Le comité doit maintenant approuver a
chaque fois la télédiffusion de ses délibérations. A la fin de la
derniére réunion, nous n’avons pas donné notre approbation a la
télédiffusion de cette réunion-ci, mais nous y reviendrons a la fin
de la réunion d’aujourd’hui.

Le sénateur Lapointe: Vous a-t-on donné une raison?

Le sénateur Gauthier: Monsieur le président, je pense que le
comité a adopté un ordre de renvoi autorisant la télédiffusion de
ses réunions. Le greffier, avec I'approbation du président, doit
simplement en faire la demande auprés des services voulus. Je ne
pense pas qu’il soit nécessaire d’approuver a chaque fois la
télédiffusion de nos audiences.

Le vice-président: Sénateur Gauthier, c’est peut-étre la décision
que prendra le comité cet aprés-midi, mais nous n’avons pas pour
I'instant 1’autorisation voulue pour faire télédiffuser la séance.

Honorables sénateurs, la présidente du comité, le sénateur

Losier-Cool, est toujours en convalescence et elle m’a demandé de
la remplacer aujourd’hui.

[Frangais)

Le vice-président: Elle sera de retour le 24 mars, a la prochaine
réunion.
[Traduction]

Notre réunion d’aujourd’hui sera plus courte que prévu. Lors
de la réunion du 10 février, le comité a décidé d’inviter des
représentants du ministere de la Justice et de la Fédération franco-
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Fédération franco-ténoise. Both organizations agreed to send
representatives, and we were to have with us today two senior
officials from Justice Canada.

The federation, however, called us last week to cancel their
appearance. Even though they initially agreed to appear, they
were unable to be available on such short notice.

Furthermore, the federation advised us that they did not see
any urgency to appear before the committee, since their lawsuit
was still pending before the territorial Supreme Court, and since
amendments to the territorial Official Languages Act would not
to be tabled until March 3. The federation, therefore, extends its
apologies to the committee and has offered to appear before us at
a later date.

We tried to schedule another witness for the second half of our
time today, but were unable to do so.

At today’s meeting, therefore, we shall hear from only the
Department of Justice. We have with us today
Mr. Marc Tremblay, General Counsel and Director, Official
Languages Law Group. He is accompanied by
Mr. Warren Newman, General Counsel, Constitutional and
Administrative Law Section. I understand that neither of you
gentlemen wish to make opening remarks.

Senator Beaudoin: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman: We
have one thesis that will be dealt with today. We need to hear the
other side. I do not want to start the meeting today without
knowing if we will hear the other point of view. We have two
points of view. I would like to know if we will invite the other
party to this matter to appear before us at a later date.

The Deputy Chairman: Senator Beaudoin, we will certainly
invite the other party. Regrettably, they chose not to appear
today. It appeared to me, as far as I understood, that they were
concerned about the matter being before the courts. They are
quite agreeable to appearing later on.

Senator Beaudoin: We have been most prudent in our
recognition of the doctrine of sub judice. We obtained a
declaration and an opinion from the office of Mr. Audcent. It
is clear that the Parliament of Canada, the Senate and the House
of Commons, when dealing with a case that is not criminal law,
can certainly deal with the applicable principle of law. I have that
opinion and, if necessary, I will refer to it.

Since we will hear the representatives from the Department of
Justice, we will also hear from the representatives of the
Fédération franco-ténoise. However, we will do that at a later
date so that there is no problem of sub judice. We certainly have
the right, as one of the three branches of our government, to carry
out our duties as a committee.

The Deputy Chairman: I agree, Senator Beaudoin. The issue is
not with the committee. The invitation was extended. The
Fédération franco-ténoise declined our invitation, but have
committed to come at a later date.

ténoise. Les deux organismes ont accepté notre invitation et nous
comptons aujourd’hui parmi nous deux hauts fonctionnaires du
ministére de la Justice.

La fédération a cependant appelé la semaine derniére pour
annuler sa comparution. Bien que la fédération ait au départ
accepté notre invitation, aucun de ses membres n’a pu se libérer
dans des délais si courts.

En outre, la fédération a dit qu’il ne lui semblait pas urgent de
comparaitre devant le comité étant donné que son action en
justice est toujours en suspens devant la Cour supréme du
territoire et étant donné que les modifications a la Loi sur les
langues officielles du territoire ne seront pas déposées avant le
3 mars. La fédération s’excuse donc aupres du comité et a offert
de comparaitre devant lui a une date ultérieure.

Nous avons essayé de remplacer la fédération par un autre
témoin mais nous ne sommes pas parvenus a le faire.

Nous n’entendrons donc aujourd’hui que les représentants du
ministére de la Justice. Nous accueillons aujourd’hui M. Marc
Tremblay, avocat général et directeur, Groupe du droit des
langues officielles. Il est accompagné de M. Warren Newman,
avocat général, Section du droit administratif et constitutionnel.
Je crois que ni I'un ni 'autre d’entre vous ne souhaitez faire une
déclaration préliminaire.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: J'invoque le Réglement, monsieur le
président. Nous entendrons le point de vue d’une partie seulement
aujourd’hui. Nous devons entendre I'autre point de vue. Je ne
veux pas que la réunion d’aujourd’hui commence sans d’abord
savoir si nous entendrons le point de vue de la partie adverse. 11
existe deux points de vue. J’aimerais savoir si nous allons inviter
l’autre partie a comparaitre devant nous a une date ultérieure.

Le vice-président: Sénateur Beaudoin, nous le ferons
certainement. La partie adverse a malheureusement décidé de ne
pas comparaitre devant nous aujourd’hui. Si j’ai bien compris, elle
a pensé qu’il valait mieux ne pas le faire, compte tenu du fait que
’affaire est toujours devant les tribunaux. La fédération est tout a
fait préte a comparaitre devant nous plus tard.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Nous avons été tres prudents de ne pas
compromettre une affaire en cours. Nous avons demandé 1’avis
du bureau de M. Audcent a ce sujet. Il est clair que le Parlement
du Canada, le Sénat et la Chambre des communes peuvent se
pencher sur un principe de droit lorsqu’il ne s’agit pas d’une
affaire pénale. J’ai devant moi cet avis et je m’y reporterai au
besoin.

Etant donné que nous entendrons les représentants du
ministére de la Justice, nous devons aussi entendre les
représentants de la Fédération franco-ténoise. Nous le ferons
cependant plus tard pour ne pas compromettre une affaire en
cours. En tant que I'une des trois branches de notre
gouvernement, nous avons certainement le droit comme comité
de nous acquitter de notre role.

Le vice-président: Je suis d’accord avec vous, sénateur
Beaudoin. Le comité a bien invité la fédération a comparaitre.
La Fédération franco-ténoise n’a pas pu comparaitre aujourd’hui,
mais elle a accepté de le faire plus tard.



24-2-2003

Langues officielles 4:7

Senator Gauthier: Did you speak with them?

The Deputy Chairman: No.

Senator Gauthier: You stated that the matter is before the
courts and that is why they did not come. I do not understand.
That is not what they told me.

The Deputy Chairman: I did not speak with them, Senator
Gauthier, so I would stand on what you have said. However, they
did decline to come.

Senator Gauthier: Who spoke with them?
The Deputy Chairman: The clerk.

Senator Gauthier: What were the instructions to the clerk? Am
I correct is saying that he was to invite them?

The Deputy Chairman: Yes.

Senator Gauthier: Once we extend an invitation, people
generally come. I know for a fact that the expenses incurred
would have been high, because they happen to be in the
Northwest Territories. This organization does not have much
money. However, I told them that we would pay their travelling
expenses to Ottawa if they decided to come.

[Translation]

The Fédération des francophones hors Québec or the
Fédération des communautés francophones et acadienne is
located in Ottawa. They would have appeared, had they been
invited. I was not consulted and I am a member of the committee.
It would have been considerate, if the Franco-Ténois felt they
were unable to come to Ottawa, for the clerk to call me or another
member to ask us if we had other suggestions to put forward for
witnesses. As Senator Beaudoin has said, we will only be hearing
one side of the story. I want to hear the other side, I want to hear
from those who are experiencing the situation and those who are
having problems with official languages. I have the feeling that we
will have no other choice. You say that they may be interested. I
think the committee is interested. If we are not, then that is a sad
story indeed.

[English)

It is a sad state of affairs if we have to say it is not proper for us
because it is before the courts. That is not a valid argument
because the matter is not before the courts. As far as I am
concerned, I am speaking with parliamentarians here, and I want
to know what is going on, as much as I would like to know what
is going on elsewhere in the country. I think the clerk must be
more responsive to the needs of this committee.

The Deputy Chairman: Perhaps I, too, should have been more
responsive. I thought they were acting in a reasonable manner.
They declined to come today, but they volunteered to come at a
later date. I thought that would be satisfactory.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Avez-vous parlé aux représentants de la
fédération?

Le vice-président: Non.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Vous avez dit que I’affaire étant devant
les tribunaux c’est la raison pour laquelle la fédération n’a pas
voulu comparaitre. Je ne comprends pas. Ce n’est pas ce que ses
représentants m’ont dit.

Le vice-président: Comme je ne leur ai pas parlé, sénateur
Gauthier, je m’en remets a vous. Les représentants de la
fédération ont cependant refusé de comparaitre devant le comité.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Qui leur a parlé?
Le vice-président: Le greffier.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Quelles instructions a-t-on donné au
greffier? Si je ne me trompe, on lui a dit de les inviter?

Le vice-président: Oui.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Quand ils sont invités, en général les gens
viennent. Je sais trés bien que les frais auraient été considérables
puisqu’ils sont dans les Territoires du Nord-Ouest. Cette
organisation n’a pas beaucoup d’argent. Toutefois, je leur ai dit
que nous paierions leurs frais de déplacement a Ottawa s’ils
acceptaient de venir.

[Frangais)

La Fédération des francophones hors Québec ou la Fédération
des communautés francophones et acadienne est a Ottawa. Elle
aurait pu venir si elle avait été invitée. Je n’ai pas été consulté et je
suis membre du comité. Cela aurait été gentil, si les Franco-Ténois
ne se sentaient pas capables de venir, que le greffier m’appelle ou
appelle un autre membre pour nous demander si nous avions
d’autres suggestions de témoins. Comme le sénateur Beaudoin le
dit, on va entendre un co6té de la médaille. Je veux entendre ’autre
coté, ceux qui vivent dans le bain et ceux qui ont des problemes
avec les langues officielles. Cela me donne I'impression que nous
n’aurons pas le choix. Vous dites qu’ils seront peut-étre intéressés.
Je crois que le comité est intéressé. Si nous ne le sommes pas, c’est
triste.

[Traduction]

C’est regrettable si nous devons dire que ce n’est pas correct
parce que laffaire est devant les tribunaux. Ce n’est pas un
argument valable parce que l’affaire n’est pas devant les
tribunaux. Autant que je sache, je m’adresse ici a des
parlementaires et je veux savoir ce qui se passe comme
Jaimerais savoir ce qui se passe ailleurs dans le pays. Je pense
que le greffier devrait répondre plus fidélement aux attentes de
notre comité.

Le vice-président: Peut-étre aurais-je dit moi aussi y répondre
plus fideélement. Je pensais qu’ils agissaient de fagon raisonnable.
IIs ont dit qu’ils ne voulaient pas venir aujourd’hui mais qu’ils
étaient préts a venir a une autre date. J’ai pensé que ce serait
suffisant.
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Senator Maheu: Mr. Chairman, was the Fédération franco-
ténoise aware that we would pay their expenses? The clerk is
indicating that they did know we would pay. Thank you.

[Translation]

Senator Comeau: I do not want to delay this discussion any
longer, because we have witnesses. We should not take too long to
deal with one subject. We must not blame the clerk who was
simply acting on behalf of the chairman. He called witnesses to
ask them if they wanted to appear before the committee. If they
refused, then that is the end of it. If we are unhappy with their
response, it is up to the senators, and not the clerk, to encourage
witnesses to appear.

Senator Gauthier: I am saying that in this case, the clerk should
have tried to find other witnesses to appear.

Senator Comeau: Well, we start with the chairman, and if he is
not satisfied, then we continue.

Senator Lapointe: We have witnesses from the department who
are waiting. Any discussion concerning committee business
should take place after we hear these gentlemen.

[English)

The Deputy Chairman: Senator Gauthier, would you like to
question the witnesses?

Senator Beaudoin: Do they not have a presentation?
The Deputy Chairman: They have no statements.

Mr. Warren J. Newman, General Counsel, Constitutional and
Administrative Law Section, Department of Justice: Honourable
senators, having listened to this discussion with some interest, it
might behove me to preface our remarks to you in some context.

[Translation]

We were invited to appear before the committee. We are not
here with legal counsel, because we do not normally discuss
litigation while it is before the courts. We are appearing as
witnesses before this committee in our capacity as officials from
the Department of Justice. We have some knowledge about the
facts surrounding the situation in the Northwest Territories and
the use of official languages. We do not intend to enter into a
debate in the presence of other counsel, with the Franco-Ténois or
any other parties to the case. According to our understanding of
the issue, this could be considered contempt of court, and at the
very least it would not be right for us to plead the case before it is
adjudicated by the relevant tribunal.

[English]
The Deputy Chairman: It was my understanding that you
wished not to make statements, but to answer questions.

Mr. Marc Tremblay, General Counsel and Director, Official
Languages Law Group, Department of Justice: That is correct,
honourable senators.

Le sénateur Maheu: Monsieur le président, la Fédération
franco-ténoise savait-elle que nous couvririons ses frais de
voyage? Le greffier nous dit qu’elle le savait. Merci.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Comeau: Je ne veux pas retarder cette discussion
plus longtemps parce que nous avons des témoins. Nous ne
devons pas demeurer sur ce sujet trop longtemps. On ne devrait
pas blamer le greffier qui a fait son travail au nom du président. I1
a appelé des témoins pour leur demander s’ils voulaient
comparaitre devant nous. S’ils ont refusé, ils ont refusé. Si nous
ne sommes pas satisfaits de la réponse, il appartient aux sénateurs
et non pas au greffier a inciter les témoins a témoigner devant
nous.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Je dis que dans ce cas, le greffier aurait
di poursuivre pour inviter d’autres personnes.

Le sénateur Comeau: Bien, avec le président, s’il n’est pas
satisfait, on poursuit apres.

Le sénateur Lapointe: Nous avons des témoins du ministére qui
attendent. La discussion qui concerne le travail du comité devrait
venir aprés la comparution de ces messieurs.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Sénateur Gauthier, vous voulez poser une
question au témoin?

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Ils n’ont pas d’exposé?
Le vice-président: Non.

M. Warren J. Newman, avocat général, Section du droit
administratif et constitutionnel, ministére de la Justice:
Honorables sénateurs, aprés avoir écouté cette discussion avec
intérét, je me dois de replacer mes remarques dans leur contexte.

[Frangais]

Y

Nous étions invités a comparaitre au comité. Nous ne nous
sommes pas présentés avec 1’avocat du dossier, précisément parce
que nous ne sommes pas habilités a discuter d’un litige en cours
devant les tribunaux. Nous sommes témoins a ce comité parce que
nous sommes quand méme fonctionnaires au ministére de la
Justice. Nous détenons certaines connaissances des faits entourant
la situation des Territoires du Nord-Ouest et les langues
officielles. Nous n’avons pas I'intention non plus de débattre de
quoi que ce soit en présence des autres avocats, des Franco-Ténois
ou d’autres parties en cause. Selon notre compréhension des
choses, ce serait, sinon commettre un outrage au tribunal, a tout
le moins inopportun pour nous de plaider la cause avant qu’elle
ne soit portée devant le tribunal.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Je croyais que vous ne souhaitiez pas faire de
déclaration et simplement répondre aux questions.

M. Marc Tremblay, avocat général et directeur, Groupe du droit
des langues officielles, ministére de la Justice: C’est exact,
honorables sénateurs.
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The Deputy Chairman: Would you like to begin, Senator
Gauthier?

Senator Gauthier: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[Translation]

Senator Gauthier: I am interested in the use of official
languages in the Northwest Territories. I do not really care
about lawyers or legal cases. What I want to know is how the
people living in the territories are treated, where, according to
what I have been told, an act was passed in 1984. You may say
that I am mistaken. The Conservative government of
Mr. Mulroney had proposed that an agreement be signed with
the territories concerning official languages.

Am I right so far?
Mr. Newman: Yes.

Senator Gauthier: I was there, but I do not remember all of the
details. I was the official languages critic for the Liberal Party in
the House of Commons at the time.

I remember full well having asked questions about the
agreement with the territories. I was told not to worry because
they had undertaken to adopt an official languages act in the
territories which would be comparable, similar to the one we had
in Parliament, the one that was amended in 1988. Mr. Newman
will remember that.

In 1988, Parliament adopted a new Official Languages Act. In
the Official Languages Act, at clause 3 — I might be mistaken, I
am quoting from memory — it is clearly stated that the
Northwest Territories are excluded from the Official Languages
Act. I should quote the text. This is from clause 3:

. does not include any institution of the Council or
Government of the Northwest Territories or the Yukon
Territory or of the Legislative Assembly or Government of
Nunavut or any Indian band, band council or other body
established to perform a governmental function in relation
to an Indian band or other group of Aboriginal people.

I had asked the following question at the time: Are we allowed
to do that? Are we — a responsible Parliament having signed an
agreement with one or a number of territories — allowed to
include in a federal act, an exclusion from that legislation? I was
told not to worry.

In 1988, the act was amended. I found that somewhat difficult
to accept. I will tell you why. In the Canadian Charter of Rights
and Freedoms, in clauses 30 and 32, it is clearly stated, and I
quote:

30. A reference in this Charter to a province or to the
legislative assembly or legislature of a province shall be
deemed to include a reference to the Yukon Territory and
the Northwest Territories, or to the appropriate legislative
authority thereof, as the case may be.

Le vice-président: Vous voulez commencer, sénateur Gauthier?

Le sénateur Gauthier: Merci, monsieur le président.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Gauthier: C’est la situation des langues officielles
dans les Territoires du Nord-Ouest qui m’intéresse. Ce n’est pas
de savoir s’il y a des avocats ou s’il y a un recours en justice. Je
veux savoir comment sont traités les gens qui vivent dans les
territoires ou, selon ce que j’en sais, une loi a été adoptée en 1984.
Vous me le direz si je me trompe. Le gouvernement conservateur
de M. Mulroney avait proposé la signature d’une entente avec les
territoires concernant les langues officielles.

Est-ce exact ce que j’ai dit jusqu’a maintenant?
M. Newman: Oui.

Le sénateur Gauthier: J’étais 1a, mais je ne me souviens pas de
tous les détails. J’étais le critique des langues officielles du Parti
libéral a la Chambre des communes a cette époque.

Je me souviens trés bien d’avoir posé des questions concernant
I’entente avec les territoires. On m’avait dit de ne pas m’inquiéter
parce qu’ils s’engageaient a adopter une loi sur les langues
officielles dans les territoires qui serait comparable, semblable a
celle du Parlement canadien, celle qui a été modifiée en 1988.
M. Newman se souvient de cela.

En 1988, le Parlement a adopté la nouvelle Loi sur les langues
officielles. Dans la Loi sur les langues officielles, a I’article 3 — je
peux me tromper, j’y vais de mémoire — il est dit clairement que
les Territoires du Nord-Ouest sont exclus de la Loi sur les langues
officielles. Il serait bon que je lise le texte. Je cite Iarticle 3:

Ne sont pas visés les institutions du conseil ou de
I’administration du Yukon et des Territoires du Nord-
Ouest, celles de I’'assemblée législative ou de "'administration
du Nunavut, ni les organismes — bande indienne, conseil de
bande ou autres — chargés de I’administration d’une bande
indienne ou d’autres groupes de peuples autochtones.

J’avais posé la question a ce moment: est-ce qu’on a le droit de
faire cela? Est-ce que nous — Parlement responsable qui a signé
une entente avec un ou des territoires — avons le droit d’inclure
dans une loi fédérale, une exclusion de la 1oi? On m’a dit de ne pas
m’inquiéter.

En 1988, la loi a été modifiée. J’ai trouvé cela quelque peu
difficile a accepter. Je vais vous dire pourquoi. Dans la Charte
canadienne des droits et libertés, aux articles 30 et 32, il est
clairement indiqué, et je cite:

30. Dans la présente charte, les dispositions qui visent les
provinces, leur 1égislature ou leur assemblée législative visent
également le territoire du Yukon, les territoires du Nord-
Ouest ou leurs autorités législatives compétentes.
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32.(1) This Charter applies

(a) to the Parliament and Government of Canada in
respect of all matters within the authority of Parliament
including all matters relating to the Yukon Territory and
the Northwest Territories; and

(b) to the legislature and government of each province in
respect of all matters within the authority of the
legislature of each province.

What takes precedence? The Official Languages Act or the
Charter? Does the Charter say that they are related to the Official
Languages Act or does it say that they are excluded? I submit that
the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms takes precedence
and that this Act, in clause 3, is unconstitutional.

Do you have an answer, Mr. Tremblay? Am I mistaken on
this?

Mr. Tremblay: I understand the historical landscape that you
have presented. As to our legal conclusions, I would say that, in
part, the issue will be examined by the territorial Supreme Court.
We will have to wait much longer to have a broader contextual
answer. For the meantime, the Official Languages Act of Canada,
as with all other acts, is presumed to be constitutionally valid.

As to the application of clause 20 of the Charter, to various
legislative measures, if we assume, for the purposes of the
argument, that clause 20 of the Charter applies to the Northwest
Territories, the means taken by the government or governments
to implement the provision can vary, in all legitimacy; that
illustrates the fact that we have before us, and is also a rather
direct parallel.

From 1982 to 1988, before the new Official Languages Act was
passed, we could never say that the federal government was in
violation of the Charter. However, six years have passed since
that legislative instrument was updated. Various means can apply.
The parallel example that I wanted to put forward is the one
provided for in paragraphs 1 and 2 of clause 20 of the Charter.
One clause applies to the federal government while the other one
applies to New Brunswick. Each one has adopted different
legislative instruments. Not long after 1982 — in fact, New
Brunswick kept its 1969 act until last year — after the adoption of
the Charter, New Brunswick decided to use legislative means. It
may not be the same, in our minds, as a conclusion to the effect
that the Charter was not being respected.

Let’s say that the Charter applied to the Northwest
Territories — this matter is before the Northwest Territories
Supreme Court — the means taken by the government or
governments for implementation could vary quite legitimately.
An official languages act for the Northwest Territories would be
in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, if it were to
apply.

Senator Gauthier: Clause 20 supersedes clauses 30 and 32, if 1
understand what you have just said?

32. (1) La présente charte s’applique:

a) au Parlement et au gouvernement du Canada, pour
tous les domaines relevant du Parlement, y compris ceux
qui concernent le territoire du Yukon et les territoires du
Nord-Ouest;

b) a la législature et au gouvernement de chaque province,
pour tous les domaines relevant de cette législature.

Qu’est-ce qui prime? La Loi sur les langues officielles ou la
Charte? La Charte qui dit qu’ils sont liés a la Loi sur les langues
officielles ou la Charte qui dit qu’ils sont exclus? Je vous soumets
que c’est la Charte canadienne des droits et libertés qui prime et
que cette loi est inconstitutionnelle au paragraphe 3.

Avez vous une réponse, M. Tremblay? Me suis-je trompé
jusqu’a maintenant?

M. Tremblay: Je comprends le paysage historique que vous
nous présentez. Quant a vos conclusions juridiques, je dirais que
c’est en partie la question qui devra étre débattue par la Cour
supréme territoriale. Pour vous donner une réponse contextuelle
plus approfondie, il faudrait s’étendre passablement plus
longtemps. A titre de réponse bréve, la Loi sur les langues
officielles du Canada, comme toutes les lois, bénéficie de la
présomption de validité constitutionnelle.

Concernant I’application de 'article 20 de la Charte, par voie
de diverses mesures législatives, en supposant aux fins de
I’argument que [I’article 20 de la Charte s’applique aux
Territoires du Nord-Ouest, les moyens qui seront pris par le ou
les gouvernements pour la mettre en oeuvre pourront
légitimement varier, pour donner une illustration a propos du
fait que nous avons devant nous, mais qui est en paralléle assez
direct.

De 1982 a 1988, avant ’adoption de la nouvelle Loi sur les
langues officielles, on ne prétendra pas que le gouvernement
fédéral violait la Charte. Pourtant, six ans se sont écoulés avant la
mise a jour de I'instrument législatif. Différents moyens peuvent
étre pris pour ce faire. L’exemple en parallele que je désirais
proposer, c’est celui visé aux alinéas 1 et 2 de l'article 20 de la
Charte. Un article s’applique au fédéral et I'autre s’applique au
Nouveau-Brunswick. Chacun a pris des instruments législatifs

différents. Ce n’est que longtemps aprés 1982 — en fait le
Nouveau-Brunswick avait maintenu sa loi de 1969 jusqu’a 1’an
dernier — aprés l’adoption de la Charte que le Nouveau-

Brunswick a décidé de prendre un moyen législatif. Cela ne peut
pas équivaloir, dans nos esprits, a une conclusion selon laquelle
I’on ne respectait pas la Charte.

A supposer que la Charte s’appliquait aux Territoires — cette
question est devant la Cour supréme des Territoires — les moyens
pris par le ou les gouvernements pour y donner effet pourront
légitimement varier. Une Loi sur les langues officielles des
Territoires va dans le sens des dispositions de la Constitution, a
supposer qu’elle s’y applique.

Le sénateur Gauthier: L’article 20 passe avant les articles 30
et 32, si j’ai bien compris ce que vous avez dit?
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Mr. Newman: Clauses 30 and 32 apply to the scope of the
Charter. Clause 30 stipulates that the provisions relating to the
provinces also cover the territories. For example, we cannot say
that the legal guarantees within the Charter do not apply to the
Northwest Territories in the same way as the guarantees apply to
the provinces. Clause 32 ensures that the legislative or
governmental powers, whether it be in Parliament or the
provincial legislatures, would not escape the application of the
Charter. This also includes the territories. There are no loopholes.
I do not believe that clauses 30 and 32 settle the matter regarding
the application of clause 16(1) of the Charter or clause 20(1) of
the Charter as they relate to the territories. That is another issue,
that is to say, whether or not the territories are institutions of
Parliament or of the Government of Canada for the purposes of
these sections of the Charter. The matter is now before the courts.
The aim of clause 3 of the Official Languages Act, 1988, was
precisely to determine the application of this federal legislation by
listing most of the institutions to which the act would apply,
including departments, crown corporations and federal
government agencies.

There are reasons, however, for exempting the territories for
the purposes of the act. At the time, Bill C-60, the Official
Languages Act, 1988, amended the Northwest Territories Act to
entrench or include an order relating to the official languages in
the Northwest Territories. One cannot take away from or reduce
this amendment without the approval of Parliament. So there is a
fairly watertight protection of the official languages in the
territories. As my colleague as said, if, one day, the courts
decided that the federal linguistic guarantees in the Charter were
to also apply to the territories, there are various means within the
Charter to apply these guarantees. One of these means would
involve an order relating to the Northwest Territories, and order
relating to official languages, that they call their Official
Languages Act.

Senator Gauthier: You raised the issue of clause 16.

Mr. Newman: Yes.

Senator Gauthier: We are all legislators here. But we are not
legal experts. I would like to understand how the application of an
act, the Official Languages Act in the territories, has given rise to
so much criticism about its implementation. I can read you
quotes, as I am quite familiar with the issue.

Canada’s Official Languages Act applies to all of Canada, as in
clause 3, with the exception of the territories. The Northwest
Territories would like to have a comparable and similar law, but
this is not the one. You know that as well as I do. There are no
regulations. An act without regulations is not very strong. There
are guidelines. I will give you a definition of a guideline. There is a
difference between a regulation and a guideline. An act without
regulations is toothless. You might say that clause 41 of the
Official Languages Act has no regulation, and that is true. There

M. Newman: Les articles 30 et 32 visent le champ d’application
de la Charte. L’article 30 stipule que les dispositions qui visent les
provinces visent également les Territoires. Par exemple, on ne
peut prétendre que les garanties juridiques de la Charte ne
s’appliquent pas aux Territoires de la méme maniére que ces
garanties s’appliquent aux provinces. L’article 32 fait en sorte que
les pouvoirs législatifs ou gouvernementaux, que ce soit au
Parlement ou aux législatures provinciales, n’échappent pas a
I’application de la Charte. Cela comprend aussi les Territoires. 11
n’y a pas d’échappatoire. Je ne crois pas que les articles 30 et 32
réglent la question de l'application de P'article 16(1) de la Charte
ou de I’article 20(1) de la Charte aux Territoires. C’est une autre
question en soi, a savoir si les Territoires sont des institutions du
Parlement et du gouvernement du Canada aux fins de
I’application de ces paragraphes de la Charte. Cette question
fait présentement ’objet d’un débat devant les tribunaux. Le but
de larticle 3 de la Loi sur les langues officielles de 1988 était de
préciser le champ d’application de cette loi fédérale en énongant la
plupart des institutions auxquelles la loi s’applique, dont les
ministéres, les sociétés d’Etat et les mandataires du gouvernement
fédéral.

L’exception expresse des Territoires a, en contrepartie, les
dispositions a la fin de la loi. A I’époque le projet de loi C-60, la
Loi sur les langues officielles de 1988, modifiait la Loi sur les
Territoires du Nord-Ouest pour enchédsser ou consacrer
I’'ordonnance sur les langues officielles des Territoires du Nord-
Ouest. Cette disposition ne peut pas étre modifiée a la baisse ou
étre réduite sans I’approbation du Parlement. Il y a donc une
protection assez étanche par rapport aux langues officielles dans
les Territoires. Comme mon confrére I'a dit, si un jour les
tribunaux décidaient que les garanties linguistiques de la Charte
qui s’appliquent au fédéral s’appliquent également aux
Territoires, différents moyens de mise en oeuvre des garanties
de la Charte existent. L'un de ces moyens serait ’application de
I’ordonnance des Territoires du Nord-Ouest, ’'ordonnance sur les
langues officielles, qu’ils intitulent leur Loi sur les langues
officielles.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Vous avez soulevé la question de
larticle 16.

M. Newman: Oui.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Nous sommes tous des législateurs ici.
Nous n’avons aucune prétention juridique. Je veux comprendre
comment ’application d’une loi, la Loi sur les langues officielles
dans les Territoires a fait que I'on a des critiques en masse sur la
fagon dont la loi est appliquée. Je peux vous en lire des extraits,
j’ai fait le tour du dossier assez souvent.

La Loi sur les langues officielles du Canada s’applique a tout le
Canada ainsi que larticle 3, exception faite des Territoires. Les
Territoires voudraient avoir une loi comparable et semblable,
mais cette loi ne I’est pas. Vous le savez comme moi. Il n’y a pas
de réglements. Une loi sans réglement n’est pas trés forte. Il y a
des directives. Je vais vous donner une définition d’une directive.
Il y a une différence entre un réglement et une directive. Une loi
sans réglement n’a pas de dent. Vous pouvez dire que
larticle 41 de la Loi sur les langues officielles n’a pas de
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have been no regulation for 15 years, and that is also true. I do
not agree when you try to tell me that a territory has one type of
status while a province has another. I recognize the fact that
provinces have constitutional rights. To my knowledge, the
territories do not. They exist by virtue of an act of Parliament.
That act can be repealed at any time.

I wonder about the situation as it now stands in the Northwest
Territories: it is almost impossible to live in French because the
government does not provide any services in both official
languages. The government is not properly applying the Official
Languages Act. Their act cannot be compared to ours. I will
explain the facts as I understand them. Correct me if I am wrong.
I cannot accept what you say in your brief to the effect that the
territories are a type of province, a junior province.

The territories are not provinces. Mr. Newman can defend his
point of view. The Charter of Rights and Freedoms was passed, |
voted against it. Mr. Newman knows that. Why did I do that?
Because my rights were being quantified. In a part of the province
where numbers warrant, rights would be available. I did not think
that was right. Must we count the hearing- and vision-impaired?
No, not in my country. We all have equal rights. Clause 16 states
that the laws apply equally to each one of us.

People in the territories are complaining and they are not here.
I would like to help them. Canada’s Parliament has that
obligation — and even more so the Senate — because we
represent the regions. We are the federative chamber in this
Parliament. The other chamber is elective. We were not elected
but we are here to represent the regions and the minorities,
whether they be physical minorities or others. I think that this is a
serious political, if not legal problem. That is why I wanted to
hear what you had to say today.

Mr. Newman: I would like to correct something, I do not
believe that our counsel have pleaded that the Northwest
Territories were a quasi-province or a junior province. I believe
that one of the judges in the Saint-Jean case had described the
territories in that way, but again, we would not be comfortable
debating the status of the territories. A Federal Court decision
signed by Justice Décary deals with the status of the territories
from a constitutional, legislative and political viewpoint. The
Federal Court of Appeal does indeed state that the territories do
not enjoy the same status as a province. However, on the
legislative side, the government had given the territories the same
attributes as a true responsible government and conferred upon
them all executive, legislative and judicial powers that the
Constitution allowed Parliament to delegate, through the
Northwest Territories Act. Even though Parliament reserved the
ultimate control, the Northwest Territories Act can still be
amended. Nevertheless, the Federal Court of Appeal clearly states
that the territories are closer to provinces than to municipalities
and they are not simply agencies of the federal government.

réglement, c’est vrai. Cela fait 15 ans que cette loi n’a pas de
réglement, c’est aussi vrai. Je ne suis pas d’accord lorsque vous
tentez de me faire croire qu’un Territoire a un statut particulier et
qu’une province en a un autre. Je reconnais que les provinces ont
des droits constitutionnels. Les Territoires, a ce que je sache, n’en
ont pas. Ils existent en vertu d’une loi du Parlement du Canada.
On peut abroger cette loi en tout temps.

Je me pose des questions sur la situation dans les Territoires
actuellement: le fait de vivre en frangais devient presque
impossible parce que le gouvernement n’offre pas de services
dans les deux langues officielles. Le gouvernement ne suit pas de
fagon correcte la Loi sur les langues officielles. Leur loi n’est pas
comparable a la nétre. Je vous donne les faits tels que je les
comprends. Vous pouvez me corriger si je me trompe. Je suis
absolument incapable d’accepter ce que vous dites dans votre
mémoire selon lequel les Territoires sont une quasi province, une
province-enfant.

Les Territoires ne sont pas des provinces. M. Newman peut
défendre son point de vue. La Charte des droits et libertés a été
adoptée, j’ai voté contre. M. Newman le sait. Pourquoi I’ai-je fait?
Parce que 1’on quantifiait mes droits. Dans une région de la
province ou le nombre le justifierait, ils auraient des droits. Je me
suis dit que ce n’était pas bon. Faut-il compter les aveugles et les
sourds? Non, pas dans mon pays. Tous ont des droit égaux.
L’article 16 spécifie que I’on a accés aux lois de fagcon équitable.

Des gens se plaignent dans les Territoires et ils ne sont pas ici.
Je veux les aider. Le Parlement canadien a cette obligation — et le
Sénat encore plus — parce que nous représentons les régions.
Nous sommes la Chambre fédérative de ce Parlement. L’autre,
c’est la Chambre élective. Nous ne sommes pas élus mais nous
sommes ici pour représenter les régions et les minorités physiques
ou autres. Je pense qu’il y a un probléme sérieux, politique mais
non légal. C’est pourquoi je voulais vous entendre aujourd’hui.

M. Newman: J’aimerais apporter une précision, je ne crois pas
que nos avocats auraient plaidé que les Territoires du Nord-Ouest
étaient une quasi province ou un enfant-province. Je crois qu’un
des juges dans l'affaire Saint-Jean avait qualifié le statut des
Territoires ainsi, mais encore, nous serions mal a ’aise de débattre
du statut des Territoires. Une décision de la Cour d’appel fédérale
rédigée par le juge Décary parle du statut des Territoires au point
de vue constitutionnel, législatif et politique. Effectivement, la
Cour fédérale d’appel prétend que les Territoires n’ont pas le
méme statut qu’une province. Par contre, sur le plan 1égislatif, le
gouvernement avait investi les Territoires avec les attributs d’un
véritable gouvernement responsable et leur a confié la plénitude
des pouvoirs exécutif, législatif et judiciaire que la Constitution
permettait au Parlement de déléguer, par I’entremise de la Loi des
Territoires du Nord-Ouest. Bien que le Parlement se soit réservé le
controle ultime, on peut toujours modifier la Loi sur les
Territoires du Nord-Ouest. Il n’en reste pas moins que la Cour
fédérale d’appel est certainement d’avis que les Territoires
s’apparentent davantage aux provinces qu’aux municipalités
quant a leur statut et ne sont pas uniquement des mandataires
du gouvernement fédéral.
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It is true that the territories are a creation of the federal
Parliament but that does not mean that they are agents of the
federal government. There is a difference between the legislative
control exercised by Parliament over the territories and the
governmental control of the federal government over the
territories which is much less obvious today because there is a
tendency to respect the territories’ responsible government,
pursuant to their political evolution.

I wanted to make that clarification with respect to the status of
the territories. The Federal of Court Appeal decision is publicly
available. That does not settle the issue relating to the
implementation of the Territories Act and the Official
Languages Act in the territories. As to the effectiveness of the
legislation, the act does provide a mandate for an official
languages commissioner as well as legal recourse before the
Superior Court of the Northwest Territories. If a regulation is
needed for the implementation, I believe that Mr. Tremblay
would be better able to discuss the possibility of amending the act.
There is a committee in the territories that is examining possible
improvements to the act and its implementation. I believe that all
of our actions so far involve ensuring that the territories be
accountable for their own official languages act as well as its
implementation through effective relief mechanisms.

Senator Gauthier: Since you have raised the issue,
Judge Décary spoke on behalf of the majority on the Federal
Court. The reason that he said that the Federal Court did not
have jurisdiction was because the territories were not a federal
institution. That is what he wrote.

Mr. Newman: Let us just say that it is not a representative of
the federal Crown per se.

Senator Gauthier: I am talking about institutions. Section 3
deals with and defines federal institutions. Mr. Newman, you
know this as well as anyone else, but we are the ones who insisted
on the fact that Parliament, the House of Commons, the Senate
and the Library of Parliament be defined as federal institutions
under section 3.

Mr. Newman: Yes.

Senator Gauthier: How can a federal institution create
something which does not devolve from this institution? I do
not understand! I am no legal expert, no more than is
Senator Lapointe, but I would like to understand how you get
around being defined as an institution.

Mr. Newman: Parliament can introduce legislation to create
Canadian business organizations, for instance, but they are not
instruments of the federal government. It can create entities
through legislation which are not necessarily accountable to
government departments. Parliament can subject these entities to
the Official Languages Act if they fall under Parliament’s
jurisdiction. Parliament could have opted to apply either the
Official Languages Act directly, or other measures, but
Parliament chose to augment the territorial agreement and

Il est vrai que les Territoires sont une créature du Parlement
fédéral mais cela ne veut pas dire qu’ils sont des mandataires du
gouvernement fédéral. Il y a une distinction entre le contrdle
législatif qu’exerce le Parlement sur les Territoires et le contrdle
gouvernemental du gouvernement fédéral sur les Territoires qui
est beaucoup moins évident de nos jours parce qu’il y a une
tendance pour respecter les principes du gouvernement
responsable des Territoires, conformément a leur évolution
politique.

C’est la précision que je voulais apporter a propos du statut des
Territoires. La décision de la cour fédérale d’appel est disponible
pour le grand public. Cela ne tranche pas le débat pour autant
dans les Territoires sur la mise en oeuvre de la Loi sur les
territoires et la Loi sur les langues officielles des Territoires.
Quant a lefficacité de cette loi, la loi prévoit quand méme un
mandat pour un commissaire aux langues ainsi qu’un recours
judiciaire devant la cour supérieure des Territoires du Nord-
Ouest. Dans ses modalités d’application, s’il faut un réglement, je
crois que M. Tremblay serait davantage en mesure de vous parler
des développements des modifications éventuelles de la loi. Il y a
un comité des Territoires qui se penche actuellement sur la
question des améliorations de la loi et de sa mise en oeuvre. Je
pense que toutes nos actions jusqu’a maintenant étaient de
s’assurer qu’il y ait imputabilité des Territoires face a leur propre
Loi sur les langues officielles et a sa mise en oeuvre par des
mécanismes efficaces de redressement.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Puisque vous avez soulevé la question, le
juge Décary a parlé au nom de la majorité de la Cour fédérale. La
raison qu’il a invoquée pour débouter la cause a la cour fédérale
était que cela n’était pas une institution fédérale des Territoires.
C’est ce qu’il a dit.

M. Newman: Disons que ce n’est pas un mandataire de la
Couronne fédérale en soi.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Je parle d’institution. L’article 3 traite et
définit les institutions fédérales. M. Newman, vous le savez aussi
bien que n’importe qui, c’est nous qui avons insisté pour que le
Parlement, la Chambre des Communes, le Sénat et la
Bibliothéque du Parlement soient inclus comme institutions
fédérales dans la définition de I’article 3.

M. Newman: Oui.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Comment une institution fédérale peut-
elle créer quelque chose qui n’est pas le résultat de cette
institution? Je ne comprends plus! Je n’ai aucune prétention
juridique, pas plus que le sénateur Lapointe, mais j’aimerais
comprendre comment vous pouvez contourner la définition d’une
institution.

M. Newman: Le Parlement peut légiférer pour créer des sociétés
commerciales canadiennes, par exemple, qui ne sont pas
nécessairement des instruments du gouvernement fédéral. On
peut légiférer pour créer des entités qui ne relévent pas
nécessairement des ministéres. Le Parlement peut assujettir ces
entités a la Loi sur les langues officielles dans la mesure ou elles
sont dans les champs de compétences du Parlement. Le Parlement
aurait pu faire appliquer soit la Loi sur les langues officielles
directement ou d’autres mesures, mais le Parlement avait choisi de
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legislation on official languages by enshrining it. That way, it was
still possible to back out without Parliament’s approval.
Parliament chose this option in 1988.

Senator Gauthier: The agreement between the territories and
the federal government was made in good faith. The territories
were to adopt official languages legislation similar to the federal
legislation, with regulations. But they did not do so; they adopted
directives. These are administrative, but not binding.
Mr. Tremblay, perhaps you can give me a definition of
regulation or directive. My definition is not the same as yours.

Mr. Tremblay: I will use yours. I will admit that legislation,
regulation, directives and administrative policies follow an
increasing order of obligation, meaning that the courts can
more easily rule on legislation than on an administrative policy.
This is the range of instruments a government may use to govern
efficiently.

But that is a far cry from saying that a jurisdiction has
breached the law by passing legislation without adopting
regulations, even though, under the legislation, it had the power
to make regulations.

For instance — I do not want to expose my client, the
Government of Canada, to risks, but there are dozens of
regulatory powers under the Official Languages Act of Canada.
I could give you several examples. The first one that comes to
mind is the regulatory power contained in subsection 11.3 of the
act.

The governor in council may — perhaps it is because it is the
first regulatory power contained in the act — through regulation
set the conditions in which the above-mentioned categories of
agreements must be bilingual.

But there are no such regulations. There are about a dozen
regulatory powers, but only one has been applied. This does not
mean that the provisions contained in the law have not been
upheld. If they have not been upheld, the legislative provisions
create rights and not regulatory provisions.

I understand by what you are saying that, with regard to the
territories, your concern is that they did not regulate the
conditions in which they must provide bilingual services to the
public. The regulations did not define the meaning of “where
numbers warrant”. But the federal government has, in a clear and
specific manner. You can consult a list of federal institutions on
various websites which name the specific offices of a federal
institution which, under the regulation, must provide service in
both official languages.

We do not have regulatory clarity because no regulation was
adopted by the territories. But a tribunal — in this case, the
Supreme Court of the territories, which would hear the matter
and is in fact seized of the issue — would examine the provisions
of the territorial Official Languages Act, as it is currently called,
to determine whether the right to use the language of one’s choice

bonifier I’entente et la loi territoriale des langues officielles, en
I’enchéassant, de maniére a ce qu’on ne puisse reculer sans
I’approbation du Parlement. En 1988, c’est de cette facon que le
Parlement avait choisi de traiter cette question.

Le sénateur Gauthier: L’entente avec les Territoires a été
conclue entre le fédéral et les Territoires sur la base de la bonne
foi. Ils devaient adopter une Loi sur les langues officielles
comparable a celle du gouvernement fédéral, avec des réglements.
Ils n’en ont pas, ils ont des directives. C’est administratif et non
exécutoire. Monsieur Tremblay, vous pourriez peut-étre me
donner une définition d’un réglement et d’une directive. Ma
définition différe de la votre.

M. Tremblay: Je vais me fier a la votre. Je peux confirmer
qu’entre le texte législatif, le réglement, la directive, la politique
administrative, on passe a un ordre plus contraignant qui peut
donner lieu a des jugements des tribunaux qui peuvent intervenir
dans le cadre d’une loi et moins directement dans le cas d’une
politique administrative. C’est la gamme des instruments dont un
gouvernement peut se doter pour diriger de fagon efficace.

De la a conclure que, parce que dans un contexte ou une loi
quelconque, on donne un pouvoir d’adopter un réglement, mais
quil n’y a pas eu de reglements adoptés, que I'on doive
nécessairement conclure a la violation de la loi, il y a une marge.

Je vous dirais, par exemple — je ne veux pas exposer mon
client, le gouvernement du Canada a des risques — mais dans la
Loi sur les langues officielles du Canada, il y a une douzaine de
pouvoirs réglementaires prévus. Je pourrais vous en donner
plusieurs exemples. Le premier qui me vient en téte est celui du
paragraphe 11.3 de la loi.

Le gouverneur en conseil peut — c’est peut-&tre parce que c’est
le premier pouvoir réglementaire dans la loi — par réglement fixer
des circonstances dans lesquelles les catégories d’accords
mentionnées devront étre bilingues.

Il n’y a pas de tels réglements. Il existe une douzaine de
pouvoirs réglementaires, mais seulement un a été exercé. Cela ne
veut pas dire que les dispositions législatives ne sont pas
respectées. Si elles ne sont pas respectées, ces dispositions
législatives créent les droits et non les dispositions réglementaires.

Je crois comprendre par vos commentaires que ce qui vous
préoccupe dans les Territoires, c’est qu’ils n’ont pas précisé dans
un réglement les conditions d’application de son obligation de
servir le public dans les deux langues officielles. Il n’a pas défini
par réglement ce que signifiait la demande importante. Nous
I’avons fait au gouvernement fédéral. Cela est clair et précis. On
peut consulter une liste d’institutions sur les différents sites web,
qui nomment les bureaux spécifiques d’une institution fédérale
qui, en vertu de ce réglement, sont tenus d’offrir des services dans
les deux langues officielles.

On n’a pas cette clarté réglementaire du fait qu’aucun
réglement n’a été adopté dans les Territoires. Par contre, un
tribunal — dans ce cas, la Cour supréme des Territoires a qui on
poserait la question et la question leur est présentement posée —
serait susceptible d’examiner les dispositions de la Loi sur les
langues officielles des Territoires, telle qu’elle est maintenant
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in debates, the right to service in English and French in the central
administration’s offices, and the right the use French or English
before the territorial courts are, in fact, upheld, as well as the right
to use French or English in designated offices, that is, where
numbers warrant.

If you look at sections 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and the following
ones of the territorial Official Languages Act, you will note a
parallel between the provisions contained in the Charter. But this
does not mean they apply. Territorial lawmakers included rights
which are similar to those contained in sections 16 to 20 of the
Charter and incorporated them into an act which provides for
legal recourse and which, in the eyes of the Canadian Parliament,
has a privileged status. We enshrined it, to use a word which not
all legal experts like. This means that if the provisions are not duly
applied, the federal government may intervene.

A legal expert would say the legislation contains rights and that
it can be interpreted by the courts, which would rule whether they
are being upheld or not. Is an act inferior to a regulation? The
general consensus is no. An act is more powerful; in the
constitutional hierarchy, it is the second-most important
instrument after the Constitution.

Senator Gauthier: Mr. Tremblay, I understand what you are
saying, but you did not answer my question. There is no definition
of office, nor of “where numbers warrant”. This is a rehash of the
debate we had in Parliament when Senator Murray was
chairperson of the Official Languages Committee. The fifth
report came out around 1976 or 1977. This goes back a long way.
Fifteen or nineteen years later, we still do not have regulations
describing which rights apply.

We are blithely told it is no problem: “where numbers
warrant”, but we will issue directives to that effect. Hold on to
your horses! This is precisely why francophones cannot get
government services in their mother tongue. They are told:
“Sorry, we don’t speak French here!” It is wrong for this to
happen in Canada, my homeland. We have an Official Languages
Act and it has to be strong.

Senator Beaudoin: I just wanted to come back to the overall
context. I have read the Appeal Court ruling. The Federal Court
of Appeal said it was not empowered to hear the case and that
you had to go before the Territorial Court. I read every word
written by Judge Décary. I found his ruling very interesting. None
of his legal arguments took me by surprise, but the ruling was
based on procedure. It was not a ruling on the substance of the
issue.

We could discuss this for months, but the fact remains that the
court did not rule on the merits of the case. There is agreement on
this. No lawyer could disagree. It is a well-argued ruling. Even
when he was referring to the territories, the judge said that the
court was not empowered to rule on the merits of the case made
by francophones living in the Northwest Territories. At the
application stage, a court must decide whether federal laws and

connue, pour voir si le droit de chacun d’utiliser la langue de son
choix dans les débats, si le droit de chacun a des services en
frangais et en anglais dans des bureaux de I’administration
centrale et des bureaux qui seraient désignés la ou il y a une
demande importante est respecté dans les faits, si le droit de
chacun d’utiliser le frangais ou 1’anglais devant les tribunaux des
Territoires, est respecté dans les faits.

Si on reprend les dispositions 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 et suivantes de
la Loi sur les langues officielles des Territoires, on constate qu’il y
a un paralléle entre les dispositions de la Charte, ce qui ne suppose
pas qu’elles s’appliquent. Le législateur territorial a prévu des
droits semblables a ceux qui sont prévus par les articles 16 a 20 de
la Charte et les a incorporés dans une loi qui donne ouverture a
un recours devant les tribunaux et qui a, du point de vue du
Parlement du Canada, un statut privilégié¢. Nous I’avons enchassé,
pour employer ce vocabulaire qui ne plait pas a tous les juristes.
Cela veut dire que la modification vers la baisse de ces
dispositions sera assujettie a une espéce de droit de regard du
Parlement fédéral.

Aux yeux d’un juriste, il y a une loi qui comporte des droits, qui
peut étre interprétée par un tribunal et qui pourra statuer sur le
respect ou non respect. Est-ce que la loi est inférieure a un
réglement? On s’entend généralement pour dire que non. La loi est
plus puissante, deuxiéme dans ’ordre constitutionnel apres le
texte constitutionnel.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Monsieur Tremblay, je sais tout ce que
vous venez de dire, mais vous n’avez pas répondu a4 ma question.
Il n’y a pas de définition de bureau, ni de demande importante. Ce
sont les mémes débats que ceux que nous avons eus au Parlement
lorsque le sénateur Murray était président du Comité des langues
officielles. Le rapport numéro 5, c’était en 1976 et 1977. Ce n’est
pas d’hier que j’en parle. Aprés 15 ans ou 19 ans, on n’a toujours
pas de réglement qui détermine ou sont les droits.

On nous répond sans probléme: la demande est importante,
mais nous décidons, par directive. Un instant! C’est pour cette
raison que les francophones ont de la difficulté a se faire servir
dans leur langue maternelle par leur gouvernement. On leur
répond: Sorry, we don’t speak French here! Cela n’est pas correct
au Canada, dans mon pays. Nous avons une Loi sur les langues
officielles et il faut qu’elle se tienne debout.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Je voulais revenir au décor général. J ai
lu le jugement de la Cour d’appel. La Cour d’appel fédérale dit
bien que vous vous étes trompés de cour, qu’il faut aller devant la
Cour des Territoires. J’ai tout lu ce que le juge Décary a dit. Je
trouve cela trés intéressant. Sur le plan juridique, rien ne m’a fait
sursauter, mais le jugement est procédural. Ce n’est pas un
jugement de fond.

Quand bien méme on en discuterait pendant trois mois, ils ne
se sont pas prononcés sur le fond du litige. Nous sommes tous
d’accord. Aucun avocat ne sera en désaccord avec cela. Cela est
trés bien fait. Méme lorsqu’il parle des Territoires, le juge dit que
la cour n’est pas saisie du mérite de la demande des Franco-
Ténois. La cour doit présumer, au stade des requétes, que les loi
fédérales et les ordonnances sont valides. Je suis d’accord avec
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orders are valid. [ agree with that, but one question remains: Does
section 3 of the Official Languages Act give effect to and fulfil the
obligations contained in section 16 of the Charter?

The most important thing here is not the Official Languages
Act, though it is well drafted, it is the Charter, which is the
Constitution. Section 16 states that we have two official
languages. Nobody questions this. Under section 16, French
and English have equal status. Bravo! That is terrific.

When you drafted the Official Languages Act, you included
definitions in section 3. You said that the territories were not
federal institutions. This obviously lies at the heart of the debate.
There is no point in beating around the bush, this is where the
definition lies. Every legal expert agrees that the provinces have
powers by virtue of the Constitution. Every legal expert agrees
that the territories have powers by virtue of Parliament. Do not
talk to me about quasi-provinces or the like. Territories are
territories and provinces are provinces.

Did this Official Languages Act have the right to state that the
territories are not federal institutions? I realize that opinions are
divided on this matter. We could debate the issue for hours. Tell
me: if they are not federal institutions, what are they, then? They
are neither municipalities, nor are they provinces. According to
Le Petit Robert, the word “institution” means “creation.” In the
Senate, we worked on this definition. I was told “Mr. Beaudoin,
they are a creation of the federal government, but they are not
federal institutions.”

So, tell me what they are! It is clear they are not provinces. It is
clear there are not municipalities. They clearly have many powers,
but where did these powers come from? From Parliament, not
from the Constitution. I know I will not convince you of this. |
also do not want to get into a debate on the issue, because it will
end up before the courts. Lawyers will go on for hours until the
Supreme Court makes its final decision. But there is no other way,
because we need to know what these three federal territories are.
There are 10 provinces which have the right to amend the
Constitution in cooperation with the federal government. The
territories do not have the power to amend the Constitution in
cooperation with the federal government. So, they are not the
same.

That is the final debate and I will not touch it because I realize
they are two competing theories: yours and that of the
francophones living in the Northwest Territories.

Judge Décary did excellent work; it was terrific, a small novel. I
found it very nice. He upheld section 3. He was perfectly right in
doing so. Every law is deemed valid unless it is struck down by the
courts on constitutional or legal grounds. I agree with that.
Section 3 exists. On its face, it is surprising, but there you have it.
Therefore, it is legal. There are two theories.

cela, mais je m’interroge sur un seul point: est-ce que I’article 3 de
la Loi sur les langues officielles donne effet et remplit les
obligations de I'article 16 de la Charte?

La chose la plus importante, ce n’est pas la Loi sur les langues
officielles, quoiqu’elle soit généralement trés bien faite, c’est la
Charte, parce que c’est la Constitution. L’article 16 dit que les
deux langues sont officielles. Personne ne le conteste. L’article 16
dit que le frangais et I’anglais sont sur un pied d’égalité. Bravo!
C’est merveilleux.

Lorsque vous avez congu la Loi sur les langues officielles, vous
étes arrivés a l'article 3, qui détermine les définitions. Vous avez
dit que les Territoires n’étaient pas des institutions fédérales. C’est
la grande discussion. Cela est évident. Il ne sert a rien de tourner
autour du pot, c’est 1a que se trouve la définition. Tous les juristes
admettent que les provinces ont des pouvoirs qui viennent de la
Constitution. Tous les juristes admettent que les Territoires ont
des pouvoirs qui viennent du Parlement. Ne me parlez pas de
quasi provinces ou d’autres choses. Des territoires sont des
territoires et les provinces sont des provinces.

Est-ce qu’on avait le droit, dans cette Loi sur les langues
officielles, de dire que les Territoires ne sont pas des institutions
fédérales? Je sais bien qu’il y a un grand débat a ce sujet. On
pourrait en parler pendant des heures. J’aimerais bien qu’on me
dise: si ce ne sont pas des institutions fédérales, que sont-elles? Ce
ne sont ni des municipalités ni des provinces. Le Petit Robert dit
bien que le mot «institution» signifie «création». Au Sénat, on a
travaillé sur cette définition. On me disait: monsieur Beaudoin, ce
sont des créations fédérales, mais ce ne sont pas des institution
fédérales.

Dites-moi ce que c’est alors! C’est slir que ce n’est pas une
province. C’est siir que c’est plus qu'une municipalité. C’est sir
qu’ils ont beaucoup de pouvoirs, mais cela vient d’ou? Cela vient
du Parlement, pas de la Constitution. Je ne vous convaincrai pas,
je le sais. Je ne veux pas de débat a ce sujet non plus, parce que
cela ira devant le cour. Les avocats vont parler durant des heures
jusqu’a ce que la Cour supréme rende son jugement final. Cela
s’impose, parce qu’il est important de savoir ce que les trois
territoires fédéraux sont. Nous avons 10 provinces qui ont le droit
d’amender la Constitution avec le gouvernement fédéral. Les
Territoires n’ont pas le pouvoir d’amender la Constitution avec le
gouvernement fédéral. C’est donc différent.

C’est le débat final, je n’y touche méme pas parce que je sais
qu’il y a deux théories. Il y a la vétre et celle des Franco-Ténois.

Le juge Décary fait trés bien son travail, c’est merveilleux, c’est
un petit roman. Jai trouvé cela trés beau. Il présume que
l’article 3 est valide. Il a parfaitement raison. Toutes les lois sont
présumées valides tant que la cour ne dit pas qu’elles sont illégales
ou inconstitutionnelles. Je suis d’accord. L’article 3 est la. Je
trouve que c’est surprenant, a priori, mais c’est la. Donc c’est
légal. Il y a deux théses.
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You say not only that it is legal, but constitutional as well,
since it is based on section 16. My problem is this: if the territories
are not federal institutions, what are they then? The question has
yet to be answered. I hope one day someone finds the answer.

You have taken your case before the courts and I do not wish
to interfere. I am a legal expert and respect those principles.

The Parliament of Canada has the right to talk about the
Constitution. If we do not have that right, what are we doing
here? We have a Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms, we
have a federal system, we respect the powers of the provinces, we
spend all our time debating these issues.

If we were dealing with a criminal trial, I would not be here. I
would have said it was none of our business. Only a court may
rule on whether or not a man or a woman is guilty of a crime.

But we are not dealing with criminal law, but constitutional
law. We have a role to play; however, we are only playing it with
one party. I do not want us to get involved in this debate. I know
what you will say, I know what francophones living in the
Northwest Territories will say.

At one point, the ultimate question will be whether or not we
have complied with article 16 of the Canadian Charter of Rights
and Freedoms. In linguistic terms, are both languages equal?

It has been said that these are not federal institutions. We have
set up a system and it is presumed to be valid.

I am wondering how you can conclude that they are in
compliance with article 16 in every respect. Where is the equality
for francophones in the Northwest Territories? That is what
concerns me.

I know that there are no legions of francophones. It is not a
question of number. These are equal languages. This has been
argued before the Standing Senate Committee on Official
Languages and it is still being argued. I will leave the rest up to
the courts. I cannot be accused of intervening in the trial, I am not
intervening.

Furthermore, I know how to read the Constitution and it
seems to me that this article 16 is not entirely respected in
section 3 of the Official Languages Act. That is my argument. |
will either win or lose. I hope that, as was the case in the Forest
decision, I will lose at one level and win at the Supreme Court. I
do not know. That is the dilemma. It is good that we are
discussing the matter at the Senate. It cannot be said that the
senators have not done their homework. We do do our
homework. We are interested in constitutional issues.

The Supreme Court will have the last word. It will decide
whether or not we are wrong or whether or not you erred. I have
nothing further to ask you. Indeed, I am not going to ask you
anything because, since I know your situation, I would be doing
the same thing as you are doing.

At one point the court is going to have to decide. Only the
court can decide on this matter. Unless we can convince you that
you have erred. This debate will wind up before the courts.

Vous dites non seulement que c’est légal mais que c’est
constitutionnel parce qu’on a suivi I’article 16. Mon probléme est
que je me dis: si ce ne sont pas des institutions fédérales, de quoi
s’agit-il? Personne n’a répondu a cela. Jespére qu’un jour
quelqu’un va y répondre.

Vous étes rendu devant les cours de justice. Je ne veux pas
intervenir la-dedans. Je suis juriste et je respecte les principes.

Le Parlement du Canada a le droit de parler de Constitution. Si
on n’a pas le droit de parler de Constitution que fait-on ici? Nous
avons une Charte canadienne des droits et libertés, nous avons un
fédéralisme, nous respectons les pouvoirs des provinces, on passe
notre temps a parler de cela.

Si ¢’était un proces criminel, je ne serais méme pas ici. Je dirais
que nous n’avons pas a nous méler de cela. Seule la cour peut
déclarer si un homme ou une femme est coupable au criminel.

Nous ne sommes pas en droit criminel mais bien en droit
constitutionnel. Nous avons un réle a jouer. On le joue avec une
partie seulement. Je ne veux pas qu’on intervienne dans le débat.
Je sais ce que vous allez plaider, je sais ce que les Franco-Ténois
vont plaider.

A un moment donné, la question finale sera: a-t-on respecté
l’article 16 de la Charte canadienne des droits et libertés? Est-ce
que les deux langues sont égales sur le plan linguistique?

On a dit que ce n’était pas des institutions fédérales. On a
instauré un systéme qui est 1a et qui est présumé valide.

Je me demande comment vous pouvez conclure qu’ils
respectent, en tous points, l'article 16. Ou est I’égalité pour les
francophones dans les Territoires du Nord-Ouest? C’est ce qui me
préoccupe.

Je sais que nous ne sommes pas nombreux. Ce n’est pas une
question de nombre. Ce sont les langues qui sont égales. On a
plaidé cela devant le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues
officielles et on le plaide encore. Je laisse le reste aux bons soins
des tribunaux. On ne pourra pas m’accuser d’étre intervenu dans
le procgs, je n’interviens pas.

D’autre part, je sais lire la Constitution et il semble que cet
article 16 n’est pas tout a fait respecté dans la Loi sur les langues
officielles a l’article 3. C’est ma thése. Je vais perdre ou gagner.
J’espére que comme dans 'affaire Forest, je vais perdre a une cour
puis gagner a la Cour Supréme. Je ne le sais pas. C’est le dilemme.
C’est une bonne chose qu’on en discute au Sénat. On ne pourra
pas dire que les sénateurs n’ont pas fait leurs devoirs. On fait
notre devoir. On s’intéresse aux questions constitutionnelles.

Le dernier mot, je le laisse a la Cour Supréme. Elle décidera si
oui ou non nous nous sommes trompés ou si vous vous étes
trompés. Je n’ai pas autre chose a vous demander. En fait, je ne
vous demande rien parce que connaissant votre situation, je ferais
comme Vous.

A un moment donné, il va falloir que la cour tranche. Cela ne
peut étre tranché que devant la cour. A moins quon vous
convainque que vous vous étes trompés. Ce débat va finir devant
les cours de justice.
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As legislators, we must say what we think about the main
principles. Do you agree? You were going to say no. [ will,
however, ask the question all the same.

Mr. Newman: On several occasions, you asked: if the territories
are not federal institutions, what exactly are they?

I am not going to ask the question as to whether or not
section 3 of the Official Languages Act respects article 16 of the
Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms as such. As you said,
the matter is before the courts. The status of the territories flows
from the Constitution just as the status of the provinces comes
from the federal government. Section 4 of the Constitution Act of
1871 covers the territories. It states that the Parliament of Canada
can, from time to time, draft provisions concerning the peace,
order and government of any territory that does not form part of
a province. That is the status of a territory. It is a geographical
place that is not currently part of a province.

The Constitution gives the Parliament of Canada the authority
to legislate with respect to the governance of the territory.

Is that very different from the power that the Constitution
gives the Parliament of Canada to legislate for Sable Island?

That does not necessarily change the way that this legislative
power is carried out, no more so than it necessarily changes
government entities into federal departments. This may occur, but
not necessarily so.

Senator Beaudoin: The provinces derive their powers from the
Constitution. Provinces are sovereign in their legislative fields of
activity. Just as the federal government is sovereign in its own
sphere of activity.

The territories have delegated powers but they are not
sovereign powers. This is a word that we forget about. They are
not sovereign. This is not the Crown. These are significant
delegated powers. We were right to create territories. I am in
favour of the Yukon and Nunavut; these are not provinces.
Provinces are sovereign in their sphere.

What is federalism? The federal government is sovereign in its
sphere of activity and the provinces are sovereign in theirs. The
three territories are not provinces.

They have significant and attractive powers. I voted in favour
of Nunavut I would do so again. These are delegated powers. This
is so true that, tomorrow morning, we could change the Nunavut
Act. Nobody is challenging that.

Could we change the Quebec Constitution? Should we try to
see if we can? A province is sovereign in its sphere of activity. It
derives its powers from the Constitution. The territories have
significant powers, they are very useful, I like these powers but
they are not sovereign. Parliament continues to be sovereign in its
sphere of activity.

Parliament can create territories. If it wants to, it could create
10 others. However, the territories do not have the right to amend
their constitution. Provinces have this right. So I will ask the

Nous, les législateurs, nous devons dire ce que nous pensons
sur les grands principes. Est-ce que étes d’accord? Vous allez me
dire que non. Je pose la question quand méme cette question.

M. Newman: A quelques reprises, vous avez demandé: si les
Territoires ne sont pas des institutions fédérales, que sont-ils au
juste?

Je ne vais pas répondre a la question de savoir si I’article 3 de la
Loi sur les langues officielles respecte I'article 16 de la Charte
canadienne des droits et libertés en tant que tel. Comme vous le
dites, la cause est devant les tribunaux. Le statut des Territoires
découle de la Constitution tout comme le statut des provinces
provient du gouvernement fédéral. C’est I'article 4 de la Loi
constitutionnelle de 1871 qui vise les Territoires. On prévoit que
Le Parlement du Canada pourra de temps a autre établir des
dispositions concernant la paix, I’ordre et le bon gouvernement de
tout territoire ne formant pas alors partie d’une province. C’est le
statut d’un territoire. C’est un lieu géographique qui ne fait pas, a
I’heure actuelle, partie d’une province.

La Constitution confére au Parlement du Canada le pouvoir de
légiférer pour la gouvernance du territoire.

Est-ce que cela est trés différent du fait que la Constitution
confere au Parlement le pouvoir de légiférer pour I'ile de Sable?

Cela ne transforme pas nécessairement I’exercice de ce pouvoir
législatif, ni ne transforme nécessairement les entités
gouvernementales en des ministéres fédéraux pour autant. Cela
pourrait, mais pas nécessairement a sa face méme.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Les provinces tirent leurs pouvoirs de la
Constitution. Les provinces sont souveraines dans leur spheére
législative. Comme le fédéral est souverain dans sa sphére.

Les Territoires ont des pouvoirs délégués qui ne sont pas
souverains. C’est le mot que I’on oublie. Ils ne sont pas
souverains. Ce n’est pas une couronne. Ce sont des pouvoirs
délégués qui sont considérables. On a eu raison de faire des
territoires. Je suis favorable au Yukon et au Nunavut. Ce ne sont
pas des provinces. Les provinces sont souveraines dans leur
sphere.

Qu’est-ce que c’est le fédéralisme? Le fédéral est souverain dans
sa sphére et les provinces sont souveraines dans leur sphere. Les
trois Territoires ne sont pas des provinces.

Ils ont des pouvoirs importants et intéressants. J’ai voté pour le
Nunavut et je le ferais encore. Ce sont des pouvoirs délégués.
C’est tellement vrai qu’on pourrait demain matin changer la Loi
du Nunavut. Personne ne conteste cela.

Est-ce qu’on peut changer la Constitution du Québec? Essayez
pour voir? Une province est souveraine dans sa sphere. Elle tire
ses pouvoirs de la Constitution. Les Territoires ont de grands
pouvoirs, ils sont trés utiles, je les aime bien mais ils ne sont pas
souverains. C’est le Parlement qui continue d’étre souverain dans
sa sphére.

Le Parlement peut créer des territoires. Il peut en créer dix
autres s’il le veut, mais les Territoires n’ont pas le droit d’amender
leur Constitution. Les provinces ont ce droit. Je pose la question.
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following question: If they are not federal institutions, what are
they? They are not provincial, they are not municipal, what are
they? They are federal. It is so simple!

They are federal because they are not sovereign. They are
powerful. I agree. I congratulated the government when it created
Nunavut because that helps us extend our empire to the North
Pole and we can say that this is Canadian land. Bravo!
Congratulations!

I am compelled to say that I do not see how we can say that it is
not federal. If we can change the Nunavut Act, it is because it
comes under the jurisdiction of our federal Parliament.

I agree with you and I am not saying that section 3 is invalid. It
is presumed to be valid. But, in my opinion, we could prove —
and this will be up to the court to decide — that it does not
comply with article 16.

I believe that article 16 is much more important because this is
the Constitution. There are two important things. The provinces
must respect the Constitution, and the federal government must
respect the sharing of powers. Both must respect the Charter
because it is our Constitution.

When you create legislation such as Canada’s Official
Languages Act, you must abide by clause 16, which covers
linguistic equality. I know that this is not easy and I also know
that Canada’s history shows that it takes time to convince
everybody to adopt bilingualism everywhere, but it is our duty to
defend this Constitution.

Mr. Tremblay: Our previous responses go as far as what we are
able to present to you today. Like you, I would say that today we
will not really be able to persuade you with respect to the validity
of our argument.

To conclude the debate, obviously there is a very interesting
theoretical debate underway which is of interest to lawyers in
particular. If we were to presume that your argument was valid
and would be supported by the courts and we concluded that
clause 16 applied, we would still have to demonstrate that the
Official Languages Act territorial ordinance did not meet these
same clause 16 requirements. This territorial ordinance with
respect to official languages also benefits from prima facie
validity.

On the one hand, if we were to draw a parallel between the
provisions of the Charter and the territorial ordinance and
Charter provisions and the 1969 New Brunswick Act — it did not
have regulations and, to my knowledge, the new version still does
not include enforcement regulations — and, on the other hand, if
we were to compare the federal legislation, its scope and practical
applications with respect to clauses 16 to 20 of the Charter, the
New Brunswick legislation with respect to clauses 16 to 20 of the
Charter, and the territorial ordinance with respect to clauses 16 to
20 of the Charter, we would see that there is a lot more similarity
than what is currently being implied.

Section 16 of the Charter talks about equality of status.
Section 8 of the Northwest Territories Official Languages Act
talks about equality of status; equality of status, and equal rights
and privileges as to their use in all institutions of the legislative

Si ce ne sont pas des institutions fédérales, que sont-ils? Ils ne sont
pas provinciaux, ils ne sont pas municipaux, que sont-ils? Ils sont
fédéraux. C’est tellement simple!

Ils sont fédéraux parce qu’ils ne sont pas souverains. Ils sont
puissants. Je suis d’accord. J’ai félicité le gouvernement lorsqu’il a
créé le Nunavut parce que cela nous aide a étendre notre empire
jusqu’au pole Nord et nous pouvons dire que ce sont des terres
canadiennes. Bravo! Félicitations!

Je suis bien obligé de dire que je ne peux pas voir comment on
peut dire que ce n’est pas fédéral. Si on peut changer la Loi sur le
Nunavut, c’est parce qu’elle releve de notre Parlement fédéral.

Je suis d’accord avec vous et je ne dis pas que l'article 3 est
invalide. Il est présumé valide. Mais d’aprés moi, on pourrait
prouver — et je m’en remettrai a la décision de la cour — qu’il ne
respecte pas l’article 16.

Pour moi, article 16, c’est bien plus important parce que c’est
la Constitution. Il y a deux choses importantes. Les provinces
doivent respecter la Constitution et le gouvernement fédéral aussi
pour le partage des pouvoirs. Tous doivent respecter la Charte
parce que c’est notre Constitution.

Lorsque vous créer une loi comme la Loi sur les langues
officielles du Canada, vous étes obligés de respecter I’article 16 et
I’article 16 vise I’égalité des langues. Je sais que ce n’est pas facile
et je sais aussi que I’histoire du Canada enseigne que cela prend du
temps avant de convaincre tout le monde d’adopter le bilinguisme
partout, mais notre devoir est de défendre cette Constitution.

M. Tremblay: Nos réponses antérieures vont aussi loin que ce
qu’on est en mesure de vous présenter aujourd’hui. J’affirmerais
comme vous que nous ne serons vraisemblablement pas en mesure
de vous convaincre aujourd’hui de la validité de notre thése.

Pour en venir a la fin du débat, c’est sir qu’il y a un débat
théorique tres intéressant et qui intéresse les avocats en
particulier. Si nous supposons que votre thése soit vraie et
qu’elle soit appuyée par les tribunaux et que nous concluons que
l’article 16 s’applique, il restera a démontrer que ’ordonnance de
la Loi sur les langues officielles territoriale ne rencontre pas ces
mémes exigences de l'article 16. Cette loi territoriale sur les
langues officielles bénéficie aussi de la présomption de validité.

D’une part, si on fait le paralléle des dispositions de la Charte
et de la loi territoriale et des dispositions de la Charte et de la loi
de 1969 du Nouveau-Brunswick — elle n’avait pas de réglements
et, a ma connaissance, elle n’a toujours pas de reglement
d’application dans sa nouvelle version — et, d’autre part, si on
compare la loi fédérale avec son champ d’application et ses
applications pratiques par rapport aux articles 16 a 20 de la
Charte, la loi du Nouveau-Brunswick par rapport aux articles 16
a 20 de la Charte, et la loi de 'ordonnance territoriale par rapport
aux articles 16 a 20 de la Charte, on verrait qu’il y a beaucoup
plus de similitudes que ce qu’on laisse entendre présentement.

L’article 16 de la Charte parle d’égalité de statut. L’article 8 de
la Loi sur les langues officielles territoriale parle d’égalité de
statut. Un statut, des droits et des priviléges égaux quant a leur
usage dans une institution, I’assemblée Iégislative du
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assembly and government of the Territories. Section 17 talks
about debates and other proceedings of Parliament, while
section 9 stipulates that everyone has the right to use any
official language in the debates and other proceedings of the
legislative assembly. Section 18 talks about statutes, records and
journals of Parliament.

Section 10 of the territorial act states that acts of the legislature
and the records and journals of the legislative assembly shall be
printed and published in English and French.

If we draw this parallel, we can see — and this is what I want
to draw to your attention — that the provisions of the Charter are
reflected in the provisions of the Northwest Territories Official
Languages Act.

Are they as complete as they should be? Should anything be
added? A lot of questions arise with any piece of legislation, with
regard to the existing constitutional order. The courts are there to
play that role in light of the appropriate facts.

The fundamental question that arises — and I fully understand
all senators’ concerns in this regard — is as follows: can the
Northwest Territories actually have access to services in both
official languages? That is the fundamental question.

If not, there are recourses to remedy the situation. This can be
demonstrated in the appropriate arena, but that is still a long way
from the second stage which is to show that the territorial act is
not consistent with the Charter. Doing so is perhaps not necessary
for Franco-Ténois to achieve their objectives.

Senator Beaudoin: I am a good sport, I am prepared to wait. |
am prepared to accept the decision brought down by the courts. |
simply want to point out that there are two points of view. Bear
that in mind. If we make a mistake, the court will put us back on
the right track. I believe in the principle of law. I believe in
decisions in constitutional law. They are like the Bible to me. It
seems to me that it is our duty to say what we think, without
infringing on any legislation or principles.

Senator Chaput: I would like to make some points and share
them with the working group and our guests. I agree when we say
that Parliament can and must talk about the Constitution. We are
talking about our country, and it is unique because there are two
official languages. That is one of the differences between Canada
and other countries.

We respect the rights of the provinces, and at the same time,
the Senate is the watchdog for minorities. I am a member of a
French-speaking minority from western Canada, and we have
always had to fight to obtain services in our language. Why do we
still have to fight?

The Senate must continue to closely follow what is happening.
The Senate must listen and ensure that it is aware of what the two
parties are advancing. That is why it would have been so
important to listen to the Franco-Ténois.

gouvernement des Territoires du Nord-Ouest. On parle de
larticle 17: les débats parlementaires de la Charte, de I’article 9
ou chacun a le droit d’employer I'une quelconque des langues
officielles dans les débats parlementaires et travaux de ’assemblée
législative et de 'article 18 qui parle des lois, des archives et des
comptes rendus.

L’article 10 sur la loi territoriale mentionne que les lois
promulguées par les législatures ainsi que les archives, compte
rendus et procés-verbaux de ’assemblée 1égislative sont imprimés
et publiés en francais et en anglais.

Si on fait ce paralléle, on constate — et c’est ce que je soumets a
votre attention — que les dispositions de la Charte trouvent leur
reflet dans les dispositions de la Loi sur les langues officielles
territoriales.

Est-ce qu’elles sont aussi complétes quelles devraient ’étre?
Pourrait-on y ajouter quelque chose? Il y a beaucoup de questions
qui se posent face a toute loi, face a l'ordre constitutionnel
existant. Les tribunaux sont la pour jouer ce role devant des faits
appropriés.

La question fondamentale qui se pose — et je comprends trés
bien la préoccupation de tous les sénateurs par rapport a cette
question — est: dans les faits, est-ce que les Territoires du Nord-
Ouest peuvent avoir acces a des services dans les deux langues
officielles? C’est la question fondamentale.

Sinon, il y a des recours prévus pour y pallier. Cette
démonstration pourra étre faite devant le forum approprié a
cette fin, mais on est encore loin de la seconde étape qui est de
démontrer que la loi territoriale ne respecte pas la Charte. Ce n’est
peut-étre pas nécessaire d’y arriver pour que les Franco-Ténois
arrivent a leurs fins.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Je suis bon guerrier, je suis prét a
attendre. Je suis prét a accepter la décision des cours de justice. Je
veux seulement souligner qu’il y a deux points de vue. Il faut le
dire. Si on se trompe, la cour nous ameénera dans de bons chemins.
Je crois au principe du droit. Je crois aux décisions en droit
constitutionnel. Pour moi, c’est comme la Bible. Il me semble que
c’est notre devoir de dire ce qu’on pense, sans enfreindre aucune
loi ou aucun principe.

Le sénateur Chaput: J’aimerais souligner quelques points et les
partager avec le groupe de travail et nos invités. Je suis d’accord
lorsqu’on dit que le Parlement peut et doit parler de constitution.
C’est notre pays et il est unique parce qu’il a deux langues
officielles. C’est une des différences entre le Canada et d’autres
pays.

On respecte les droits des provinces et en méme temps le Sénat
est le chien de garde des minorités. Je viens d’une minorité
francophone de langue officielle de ’Ouest du Canada et on a
toujours eu a se battre pour obtenir les services dans notre langue.
Pourquoi faut-il toujours se battre?

Le Sénat doit continuer de suivre de prés ce qui se passe. Le
Sénat doit écouter et s’assurer qu’il connait ce que les deux parties
avancent. Voila pourquoi il aurait été si important d’écouter les
Franco-Ténois.
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The court will decide. When you are a member of an official-
language minority and you are continually in court to decide
questions of law that affect the provinces, it requires a lot of time
and energy. That is reality.

I have one last comment. I clearly remember what happened in
French-speaking Manitoba and in western Canada, and I am still
under the impression that we get hung up on definitions. We get
hung up on definitions and we have to go to court for a decision.
In this case, it must be decided whether we are talking about a
territory or a province. And for the length of time that takes, it
holds up our rights and contributes to assimilation.

That reminds me of the time, some years ago, when we were
determining whether or not a woman really was a person. When it
was determined that a woman was a person, women obtained the
right to vote, but a lot of time was wasted. Today that seems
ridiculous to us because it does not make sense.

It is the Senate’s responsibility to act as a watchdog and it must
continue to do so. Franco-Ténois are entitled to exercise their
rights and obtain services in French at home.

[English)

The Deputy Chairman: Thank you, Senator Chaput. I can
assure you that we will be hearing from the francophones as soon
as they are comfortable with appearing before the committee.

[Translation]

Senator Comeau: Entities are being created by the executive
branch of government and by parliamentarians. I am talking
about foundations. One group of foundations is not subject to the
Official Languages Act, whereas the other group is. The
foundations created by Parliament are subject to the Official
Languages Act, whereas the ones created by the executive branch
are not.

By drawing this parallel, could we say that the Northwest
Territories are creations like these foundations and that they do
not need to be subject to the Official Languages Act?

Mr. Newman: On the issue of entities created by Parliament,
Senator Gauthier also said that section 3 included the Library of
Parliament, the Senate and the House of Commons. There was a
debate in the Senate and among legal advisers in the Senate at the
time, as to whether the components of Parliament were
institutions of Parliament or whether the institutions of
Parliament were simply creations of acts of Parliament rather
than components within the same Parliament. A decision was
made for the purposes of the Official Languages Act in 1988,
although in terms of constitutional principles, this debate could
still take place.

Bear in mind that the Northwest Territories are evolving in
several ways, as is the rest of the country. We know that the
Northwest Territories will never be a province without a
constitutional amendment. But that has never prevented
Parliament and the federal government from delegating powers
to the Northwest Territories for good governance and for

C’est la cour qui va trancher. Lorsqu’on est une minorité de
langue officielle et qu’on est continuellement en cour pour
trancher des questions de droit qui touchent nos provinces, cela
prend beaucoup de temps et d’énergie. C’est la réalité.

J’ai un dernier commentaire. J’ai beaucoup de souvenirs de ce
qui s’est passé au Manitoba francais et dans ’Ouest du Canada, et
j’ai toujours I'impression qu’on s’accroche sur des définitions. On
s’accroche sur des définitions et il faut aller en cour pour trancher
la question. Dans ce cas-ci, il faut définir si on parle de territoire
ou de province. Et pendant tout ce temps, cela retarde nos droits
et cela contribue a 1’assimilation.

Ceci me rappelle un temps, il y a quelques années, ou on s’est
attardé sur une définition a savoir si la femme était vraiment une
personne. Lorsqu’on a défini que la femme était une personne, la
femme a obtenu le droit de vote, mais on a perdu beaucoup de
temps. Aujourd’hui, cela nous semble ridicule parce que cela n’a
pas de sens.

Le Sénat a une responsabilité de chien de garde et doit
continuer a le faire. Les Franco-Ténois ont le droit d’obtenir leurs
droits et leurs services en frangais chez eux.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Merci, sénateur Chaput. Je vous assure que
nous entendrons les francophones dés qu’ils seront disponibles
pour comparaitre devant notre comité.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Comeau: 11 existe des entités en voie de création par
I’exécutif fédéral et par les parlementaires. Ce sont les fondations.
Un groupe de fondations n’est pas assujetti a la Loi sur les
langues officielles, par contre, un autre groupe l’est. Les
fondations sont des créatures de parlementaires. Elles sont
assujetties a la Loi sur les langues officielles alors que celles
issues de I’exécutif ne le sont pas.

Pourrions-nous alors, en faisant ce paralléle, dire que les
Territoires du Nord-Ouest sont des créations telles que les
fondations et qu’ils n’ont pas besoin d’étre assujettis a la Loi
sur les langues officielles?

M. Newman: Sur la question des créations du Parlement, le
sénateur Gauthier a aussi dit que larticle trois incluait la
Bibliothéque du Parlement, le Sénat et la Chambre des
communes. Il y a eu un débat au Sénat et parmi les conseillers
juridiques du Sénat a I’époque, a savoir si les composants du
Parlement étaient des institutions du Parlement ou si les
institutions du Parlement n’étaient que créations des lois du
Parlement plutét que des composants a l'intérieur méme du
Parlement. On a tranché ce débat, aux fins de la Loi sur les
langues officielles, en 1988, bien que sur le plan des principes
constitutionnels, ce débat pourrait toujours avoir lieu.

Il faut garder a l'esprit que les Territoires sont en évolution a
plusieurs égards, tout comme le reste du pays. On sait que les
Territoires ne seront jamais des provinces sans une modification
constitutionnelle. Mais cela n’a pas empéché le Parlement et le
gouvernement fédéral d’octroyer plusieurs pouvoirs aux
Territoires pour le bon fonctionnement en tant que
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enforcing the principles and conventions of responsible
government in the Northwest Territories, so that the NWT is
not subject to the administrative stewardship of the federal
government as if it were a teenager or a child. Considering that,
what is the ultimate objective?

It is true that the Northwest Territories have delegated powers.
And until a judicial committee of the Privy Council made a
decision, it is also true that jurisprudence stated repeatedly that
the provinces exercised powers delegated by the Parliament of the
United Kingdom, like the federal government. It was only when
the courts said no — even if the Parliament of the United
Kingdom could have amended our legislation against our will,
not in terms of conventions but strictly legally speaking, until
1982 — that things changed. The U.K. did not do so, because we
respected the conventions of responsible government. The reality
that provinces were sovereign in areas under their jurisdiction was
respected, and the same was true of the federal government. We
had the Statute of Westminster, and the like, recognizing these
conventions that stipulated that the Constitution of Canada
would not be amended without the consent of Canadians.

The Northwest Territories exercise delegated powers, but does
that mean that the territories have the same status as federal
departments or as federal crown corporations? That is why some
people say that there must be a certain amount of flexibility. For
the Official Languages Program to work properly in the
Northwest Territories, many people will say that it should not
be dictated from Ottawa, through federal legislation adopted in
Ottawa, but instead based on legislation that the Northwest
Territories will implement.

Guidelines were established in the Northwest Territories Act to
avoid any slippage. However, at some point, the Northwest
Territories will have to take responsibility for official languages.
They did so by adopting their own Official Languages Act, and by
adding amendments to include a commissioner of official
languages and court recourse. That did not exist previously.
They did not ask Ottawa for permission to add these provisions.

We must look at the situation from both sides. It is one thing
for us to say that we are the Senate — I am a firm supporter of the
Senate as well as minorities — but there is the principle of
subsidiarity. The Northwest Territories should be in a position to
know how to implement their own programs. If that does not
work, there is recourse.

Senator Comeau: No one is suggesting that the Northwest
Territories should receive directives from the federal government.
Instead, we should be absolutely sure that section 16 of the
Charter is enforced by the Northwest Territories.

Yes, things have evolved, but regardless of that, the NWT is
still a creation of the federal government. Although the federal
government has delegated powers to the Northwest Territories, it
cannot delegate constitutional responsibilities to an entity it has
created.

gouvernement et de faire appliquer les principes et les conventions
de gouvernement responsable aux Territoires pour que ceux-ci ne
soient pas soumis a la tutelle des régles du gouvernement fédéral
comme s’ils étaient des adolescents ou des enfants. Lorsqu’on
tient compte de cela, quelle est la finalité de ce qu’on veut faire?

Il est vrai que les Territoires exercent des pouvoirs délégués. 11
est vrai également que la jurisprudence, jusqu’a ce quun comité
judiciaire du Conseil privé ait tranché la question, indiquait a
plusieurs que les provinces exercaient les pouvoirs délégués du
Parlement du Royaume-Uni, tout comme le gouvernement
fédéral. Ce ne fut que lorsque les tribunaux eussent dit non,
méme si le Parlement du Royaume-Uni aurait pu modifier nos
lois contre notre gré, pas sur le plan des conventions mais sur le
plan strictement légal, jusqu’en 1982, que les choses ont changgé.
Ils ne I’ont pas fait parce que 1’on respectait des conventions de
gouvernement responsable. Ils ont respecté la réalité voulant que
les provinces soient souveraines dans leur champ de compétence
et le gouvernement fédéral aussi. On avait le Statut de
Westminster, et cetera, qui reconnaissait ces conventions
stipulant qu’on n’allait pas modifier la Constitution du Canada
sans le consentement des Canadiens.

Les Territoires exercent des pouvoirs délégués, mais est-ce que
cela veut dire qu’ils ont le méme statut que des ministeres fédéraux
ou le méme statut que des sociétés d’Etats fédérales? C’est pour
cela qu'on dit qu’il faut une certaine souplesse. Pour que le
programme des langues officielles fonctionne correctement dans
les Territoires, plusieurs diront qu’il ne faudrait pas qu’il soit dicté
d’Ottawa, avec une loi fédérale adoptée a Ottawa, mais plutot a
partir de lois que les Territoires mettront en ceuvre.

Des balises ont été établies par la Loi sur les Territoires du
Nord-Ouest pour qu’il n’y ait pas de dérapages. Cependant, a un
moment donné, les Territoires devront assurer leur propre
responsabilité a I'endroit des langues officielles. Ils I'ont fait en
adoptant leurs propres lois sur les langues officielles, en ajoutant
des modifications pour avoir un commissaire aux langues
officielles et avoir recours aux tribunaux. Ceci n’existait pas
auparavant. Ils n’ont pas demandé la permission & Ottawa pour
ajouter ces dispositions.

Il faut regarder par les deux bouts de la lorgnette. C’est une
chose pour nous de dire que nous sommes le Sénat — je suis un
ardent défenseur du Sénat ainsi que des minorités — mais il y a le
principe de subsidiarité. Les Territoires devraient étre en mesure
de savoir comment mettre en ceuvre leurs programmes sur le
terrain. Si cela ne fonctionne pas, il y a des recours.

Le sénateur Comeau: Personne ne suggére que les Territoires
devraient recevoir des directives du gouvernement fédéral. Nous
devons plutét étre absolument sirs que article 16 de la Charte est
appliqué par les Territoires.

Oui, il y a eu évolution, mais peu importe a quel point, il s’agit
encore d’une création du gouvernement fédéral. Bien que le
gouvernement fédéral leur ait délégué des pouvoirs, il ne peut pas
déléguer des responsabilités constitutionnelles a une de ces
créations.
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The responsibility for section 16 rests with the federal
government. The federal government does not have the right to
delegate this clause, unless there is a constitutional amendment. |
am not a legal expert, but I do my best to understand the
Constitution. I agree with you in regard to the changes that have
occurred. The Northwest Territories is an entity created by the
federal government, which does not want to give the Northwest
Territories directives, but if a constitutional responsibility exists,
it cannot be delegated.

Mr. Newman: First of all, we don’t exactly know if
constitutional responsibility under section 16 applies to the
Northwest Territories. If that is the case, if delegation is
effective and is such that we cannot back down legally or
legislatively speaking, several arguments could be made with
respect to implementing section 16 that have never been explored
in detail to date, because it was not necessary. We hope that it will
not come to that. In your mind, as someone who is not a lawyer,
you have imagined the possibilities for improving linguistic rights
for the Northwest Territories, and we agree that there are several
ways of proceeding so that progress is made.

Senator Léger: Yes, I have always thought that legislation
followed attitudes and did not precede them. I respect legislation.

I am a parliamentarian, as you said earlier. It seems as if some
people want to establish legislation as clearly as possible before
looking at the attitudes, as though the legislation could forcibly
lead to a change in attitudes. Is that the case? We want to speak
both languages equally in the country, I am proud of that. I
believe we must do our work. There is room for each issue and
each issue has a place. I believe that.

As legislators, do we in the Senate, in the government—I know
that it is as if we have reached the end of our efforts to convince
people to change their minds — turn to legislation to force them
to do so? That is what I am afraid of, that was my first point.

Attitudes precede legislation, and we must continue to push.
Perhaps legislation can help us, that is the reason for all of this
legal work. I thought that came afterwards. The attitudes are
very, very well entrenched.

Senator Beaudoin, I learned something from your remarks,
and Senator Comeau addressed the same topic in a different way.
Institution equals creation, have I got that right?

For my ears as an artist, creating, creation, but not creature, I
will talk about that later—is the opposite of an institution. To me,
institution means legislation. It is closed, everything can be
proven. A creation is eternally open. Something is being created.
Creating is always an open process, it is always changing, as you
are. But to me, the word “institution” involves rules; we are an
institution, the government is cumbersome, it is heavy, the Senate,
rights, privileges, I hear that left and right and it is tiring for me.
As for the word “creature,” a woman is a creature and therefore a
possession. You never said “creature,” you talked about creation.
That is not what you said, because the word “creature” implies

Il y a la responsabilité de I’article 16. Le gouvernement fédéral
n’a pas le droit de déléguer cet article, sauf si on fait un
changement a la Constitution. Je ne suis pas juriste, mais j’essaie
de comprendre la Constitution du mieux que je peux. Je suis
d’accord avec vous quant a 1’évolution. Les Territoires sont une
création du gouvernement fédéral, qui ne veut pas non plus leur
donner des directives, mais s’il y a une responsabilité
constitutionnelle, nous ne pouvons pas la déléguer.

M. Newman: Nous ne savons pas au juste si la responsabilité
constitutionnelle en vertu de I’article 16 s’applique aux Territoires
tout d’abord. Si c’est le cas, si la délégation est efficace et fait en
sorte que l'on ne peut pas reculer sur le plan juridique ou
législatif, plusieurs arguments pourraient étre apportés sur le plan
de la mise en oeuvre de 'article 16 que I’on n’a jamais exploré
cette idée a fond jusqu’a maintenant parce que ce n’était pas
nécessaire. On espére que cela n’ira pas jusqu’a ce point. Dans
votre esprit de non-juriste, vous avez bien imaginé les possibilités
pour faire avancer les droits linguistiques pour les Territoires et
nous convenons qu’il y a plusieurs fagons de s’y prendre pour que
cela avance.

Le sénateur Léger: Oui, j’ai toujours pensé que des lois venaient
aprés une mentalité, pas avant. Je respecte les lois.

Je suis parlementaire, comme vous m’avez dit tantdt. On dirait
que I’on veut établir aussi clairement que ’on peut des lois avant
la mentalité. Comme si la loi forgait la mentalité. Est-ce ainsi? On
veut parler les deux langues également au pays, j’'en suis fiere. Je
crois qu’il faut faire notre travail. Il y a une place pour chaque
affaire et chaque affaire a une place. Je le crois certainement.

Comme législateur, est-ce que nous au Sénat, au gouvernement
— je sais que c’est comme si on est a bout de la mentalité qui ne
veut pas entrer dans la téte des gens — on a recours a la loi qui va
les forcer. C’est 1a ou j’ai peur. C’était mon premier point.

Il y a la mentalité avant les lois et que ’on continue a pousser.
Peut-étre que les lois veulent nous aider, c’est la raison de tout ce
travail juridique. Je pensais que cela venait aprés et la mentalité
est tres, tres, tres, épaisse.

Sénateur Beaudoin, j’ai appris quelque chose de vos paroles et
le sénateur Comeau a pris une autre branche sur le méme sujet.
Institution égale création, ai-je compris cela?

Pour mes oreilles d’artiste, créer, création — mais pas créature,
jen parlerai aprés— est le contraire d’institution. Pour moi,
institution veut dire loi. C’est fermé, on veut tout prouver.
Création, ce n’est que 'ouverture éternelle. On crée. Créer, c’est
toujours ouvert, c’est toujours en évolution, vous I’étes aussi.
Mais a mes oreilles, le mot «institutiony», il y a des régles, nous
sommes une institution, le gouvernement est pesant, c’est lourd, le
Sénat, les droits, les priviléges, j’entends cela a gauche, a droite et
c’est tres fatigant pour moi. Quant au mot «créaturey, la femme
est une créature et donc une possession. Vous, vous n’avez jamais
dit «créature», vous avez dit création. Ce n’est pas ce que vous
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ownership. Could you clarify for me what you mean by institution
equals creation?

Senator Beaudoin: Instituting, at least in law, is like creating. I
will not touch on the arts, I adore the arts, there is nothing more
beautiful. For the arts, that is perhaps not true. Beethoven was a
creator, Mozart was a creator, but there are not many like that.

The federal government can create a territory by way of
legislation. For me, that is a federal institution. During debates,
people have said to me: Mr. Beaudoin, a creation and an
institution are not the same. That is true, artistically speaking.

I do not know if that answers your questions; artistically
speaking, you are perfectly right. If you create a play, if you write
a novel, for example, Victor Hugo, Chateaubriand are creators.
In this debate, that is not how the word institution must be
interpreted. When a province creates a municipality, it is a kind of
creation, that is certain.

The province gives it powers, it says: Montreal, you have the
right to do this or that. As for the federal government, it creates
territories, but these are organizations that are created. Now, if
the court reaches a different conclusion, which I highly doubt,
then we will see.

Senator Gauthier: If I have understood you correctly, the
Northwest Territories is a large municipality? That is my first
conclusion. Secondly, before amending or repealing the
Northwest Territories Official Languages Act, the Parliament of
Canada must make a decision, must give its support or its
approval, yes or no?

Mr. Newman: Yes, for any amendment that reduces
responsibilities.

Senator Gauthier: At some point, we will be forced to examine
the matter. I was educated by a former member who was involved
in the issue of Alberta and Saskatchewan when these provinces
were separated from the territories. My grandfather often talked
about the difficulties surrounding this decision. People were
displaced and ignored. French was dealt quite a blow.
Saskatchewan and Alberta adopted legislation that made it
virtually impossible to access the courts in French and to have
access to legal documents. You are more familiar with section 133
of the Constitution than I am. I do not want that to occur in the
Northwest Territories. Do you see what I mean?

My approach is to be a little bit more cautious. I have
colleagues who have not warmed up to the topic and who thought
we would be discussing the legal issue; I said we would not. I was
involved in the issue surrounding the Montfort Hospital, do you
remember it? I raised the matter about 12 times in the Senate.
Even though the case was pending, I raised the matter in a Senate
committee and in the Senate. I agree with Senator Beaudoin, if we
follow that rule, we will not be able to discuss anything here. I
insisted that you appear, and I am happy, because you have to
some extent clarified the debate as far as I am concerned.

avez dit, parce que créature suppose possession. Pourriez-vous
m’éclairer sur ce que vous entendez par institution équivaut a
création?

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Si on institue, du moins en droit, c’est
comme si on crée. Je ne toucherai pas aux arts, j’adore les arts, il
n’y a rien de plus beau. Pour les arts, ce n’est peut-étre pas vrai.
Beethoven créait, Mozart créait, mais il n’y en a pas beaucoup
comme cela.

Le gouvernement fédéral, dans une loi, peut créer un territoire.
D’aprés moi, c’est une institution fédérale. On a dit durant les
débats: monsieur Beaudoin, une création et une institution, ce
n’est pas pareil. C’est vrai sur le plan artistique.

Je ne sais pas si cela répond a votre question, sur le plan
artistique, vous avez parfaitement raison. Si vous créez une piece,
si vous écrivez un roman, par exemple, Victor Hugo,
Chateaubriand sont des créateurs. Dans notre débat, ce n’est
pas dans ce sens que le mot institution doit étre pris. Lorsqu’une
province crée une municipalité, c’est un peu une création. C’est
certain.

Elle leur donne des pouvoirs, elle dit: Montréal, vous avez droit
de faire ceci ou cela. Le gouvernement fédéral, lui, crée des
territoires mais ce sont des créations d’organismes. Maintenant, si
la cour arrive a une autre conclusion, ce dont je doute fort, on
verra.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Si j’ai bien compris, les Territoires sont
des grosses municipalités? C’est ma premiére conclusion.
Deuxiemement, avant de modifier ou d’abroger la Loi sur les
langues officielles des Territoires, il faut que le Parlement
canadien se prononce, qu’il donne son appui ou son accord, oui
ou non?

M. Newman: Oui, sur toute modification a la baisse.

Le sénateur Gauthier: A un moment donné, nous serons obligés
d’étudier la question. J’ai été éduqué par un ancien député qui
était impliqué dans la question de I’Alberta, de la Saskatchewan
lorsque ces provinces ont été découpées a méme les territoires.
Mon grand-pére m’a souvent parlé des difficultés de cette
décision. Les gens ont été déplacés et ignorés. Le frangais en a
pris pour son rhume. La Saskatchewan et I’Alberta ont adopté des
lois qui rendaient presque impossible I'accés aux tribunaux dans
la langue frangaise et d’avoir accés aux documents législatifs.
L’article 133 de la Constitution, vous la connaissez mieux que
moi. Je ne veux pas que cela arrive dans les Territoires du Nord-
Ouest. Vous comprenez?

Mon attitude est de prendre un peu plus de précautions. J’ai
des collégues qui sont frileux a ce sujet et qui croyaient que I’on
discuterait de la question légale, j’ai dit non. J’ai participé a la
question de I’hopital Montfort, vous vous souvenez? J’ai soulevé
cette question environ 12 fois au Sénat. Méme si la cause était sub
Jjudice, j’ai soulevé la question a un comité du Sénat et au Sénat. Je
vais dire comme le sénateur Beaudoin, si on suit cette régle, on ne
pourrait pas discuter de rien ici. J’ai insisté pour que vous veniez
et je suis content parce que vous avez un peu clarifié le débat en ce
qui me concerne.
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I want to ensure that Franco-Ténois will be able to come here
and air their grievances, if I can put it that way. I could read some
excerpts for you. The Fédération des Franco-Ténois concluded
that to date, the implementation of an adequate regime to ensure
respect for official languages in francophone communities has
failed. This is not the court speaking, it is francophones from the
Northwest Territories. I have heard this criticism. We have a
problem in the Northwest Territories.

The delivery of government services in French, either in person
or over the phone, is at best inconsistent and sporadic. Official
government publications are often not available in French,
despite the formal statutory obligation. I hear and read this
criticism constantly.

There is a problem in the Northwest Territories. I am not
talking about whether it is an institution or not. I have thought
that it is an institution for a long time, but I will leave it up to the
courts to decide.

If the federal court sees fit to not hear the Franco-Ténois, it is
because, according to legal opinions, they were not included in the
expression “Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada.” You are
familiar with the expression. What does that mean for a layman?

Mr. Newman: The Federal Crown of the executive branch of
government.

Senator Gauthier: I do not know if what we are currently
talking about comes under the federal or the territorial
government. This letter simply indicates that the Northwest
Territories was not included in the definition of Her Majesty the
Queen in right of Canada. That is the answer I was given. It
annoys me, because I do not know what that means.

Mr. Newman: Mr. Beaudoin would be in a better position to
answer your question. In Canada, there are two crowns, federal
and provincial. The government representing Her Majesty at the
federal government is Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada
and when Her Majesty is represented by one of the provincial
governments, it is Her Majesty in right of a province, like Alberta
or Manitoba, for example. It is a somewhat formal, stalked
phrase that means: the government.

Senator Beaudoin: I agree.

Senator Gauthier: I understand, it is logical. It holds water.

Senator Beaudoin: That is the argument I raised earlier. In a
federal system, the crown is provincial and federal. Each one is
sovereign in its own sphere. Her Majesty is the Sovereign.
I wanted to take this opportunity to say that both witnesses are
excellent legal experts.

You talk about changes in the Northwest Territories.
I understand that, but if we ever want to give the three
Territories provincial status, which will be possible some day, a
constitutional amendment will have to be adopted. I want that to
be recorded and emphasized on the record. It requires a
constitutional amendment.

Je veux étre assuré que les Franco-Ténois vont pouvoir venir
nous dire leurs doléances, si je peux employer ce terme. Je
pourrais vous lire des extraits. La Fédération des Franco-Ténois
conclut que jusqu’a présent, la mise en ceuvre d’un régime adéquat
pour assurer le respect des langues officielles dans les
communautés francophones est un échec. Ce ne sont pas les
tribunaux qui parlaient, ce sont des francophones des Territoires.
J’ai entendu ces critiques. Nous avons un probléme dans les
Territoires.

La prestation de services gouvernementaux en frangais, en
personne ou au téléphone, est au mieux inégale et sporadique. Les
publications officielles du gouvernement ne sont souvent pas en
frangais, malgré I’obligation statutaire formelle. Ce sont des
critiques que j’entends et que je lis continuellement.

On a un probléme dans les Territoires. Je ne parle pas du fait
qu’il s’agit d’une institution ou non. Depuis longtemps, je pense
que c’est une institution, mais je vais laisser les tribunaux décider.

Si la Cour fédérale a jugé bon de ne pas entendre les Franco-
ténois, c’est parce, selon les avis juridiques, ils n’étaient pas
compris dans l’expression «Sa Majesté la Reine du chef du
Canada». Vous connaissez ’expression. Qu’est-ce que cela veut
dire pour un profane?

M. Newman: La Couronne fédérale du gouvernement exécutif.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Ce dont on parle actuellement, je ne sais
pas si cela reléve du gouvernement fédéral ou territorial. Cette
lettre m’indique simplement qu’ils n’étaient pas compris dans la
définition de sa Majesté la Reine du chef et du Canada. C’est la
réponse qu'on m’a donnée. Cela m’irrite, parce que je ne sais pas
ce que cela veut dire.

M. Newman: Monsieur Beaudoin serait en meilleure position
d’y répondre. Au Canada, il y a les deux couronnes, fédérale et
provinciale. Le gouvernement représentant Sa Majesté au
gouvernement fédéral, c’est Sa Majesté du chef du Canada et
lorsque Sa Majesté est représentée par ses gouvernements
provinciaux, c’est sa Majesté du chef de la province, comme
chef de I’Alberta ou du Manitoba, par exemple. C’est une
expression consacrée, un peu formelle, pour le gouvernement.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Je suis d’accord.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Je comprends, c’est logique. Cela se tient
debout.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: C’est I’argument que j’ai invoqué tout a
I’heure. Dans un régime fédéral, la couronne est provinciale et
fédérale. Chacun dans sa sphére est souverain. Sa Majesté, c’est la
Souveraine. Je voulais profiter de I'occasion pour dire que ce sont
deux excellents juristes.

Vous parlez d’évolution dans les Territoires. J’accepte cela,
mais si jamais on veut donner le statut de province aux trois
Territoires, ce qui est possible un jour, il va falloir adopter un
amendement constitutionnel. Je veux que cela soit écrit et souligné
dans le dossier. Cela prend un amendement constitutionnel.
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Senator Gauthier: Earlier on, someone referred to section 3 of
the Official Languages Act, the section that excludes the
Northwest Territories from the definition of a federal
institution. A question was raised as to how that could be
interpreted in light of section 16 on equality. This is a good
debate. If it is not a political debate, I do not know what it will be.
You told me that the courts will decide. I told you at the outset
that section 3 was unconstitutional, based on my understanding
of sections 30 and 32 of the Charter of Rights and Freedoms. You
replied that you were unsure, and I understand you. Do you have
any additional information for us on that?

Mr. Tremblay: As for the constitutionality of section 3, we
have already expressed the Government of Canada’s position.
Section 3 is consistent. What I would say, however, is that it
clearly stipulates “for the purposes of this act.” For the purposes
of the Official Languages Act, federal institutions are the
institutions as defined that are listed and dealt with. It is for the
purposes of this act.

This act thus has certain purposes and other acts have other
purposes. The fact that the scope has been defined in the Official
Languages Act does not necessarily mean that everything is there.
Not everything is required to be there. There are other ways of
complying with the Constitution if, as you wish, the court were to
clarify this matter and conclude, for example, that section 16
applies to the Northwest territories. However, there are other
ways of complying with this constitutional requirement, including
legislation, which is just one possible approach among several.
Moreover, the issue is political in many ways. As I already
mentioned, Parliament defined what it wanted to include for the
purposes of this act in the Official Languages Act.

Could it have done something else in the areas under its
jurisdiction? Yes, there are always other matters that can be dealt
with. There are very few pieces of legislation, fortunately or
unfortunately, which are complete and carved in stone. If the
political will were there to do something else, obviously within
areas under federal jurisdiction, the federal government would
have some leeway.

Senator Gauthier: Is the Official Languages Act quasi-
constitutional, Mr. Tremblay?

Mr. Tremblay: Indeed.

[English]

The Deputy Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Tremblay
and Mr. Newman, for your patience, as well as for dealing with
an issue that is somewhat difficult for you at this time. We deeply
appreciate the time you gave the committee. I think it was a most
beneficial exchange. There will be more work done on this subject
very soon.

Mr. Newman: It is always a pleasure and an honour to appear
before your committee and to debate these issues.

The Deputy Chairman: Senators, we have an important meeting
scheduled for March 24. Senator Losier-Cool will be back in the
chair.

Le sénateur Gauthier: On a tant6t fait allusion a ’article 3 de la
Loi sur les langues officielles, I'article de I’exclusion des
Territoires dans la définition d’une institution fédérale. On s’est
demandé comment cela pouvait étre interprété a la lumiere de
l’article 16 sur I’égalité. Il y a un bon débat. Si ce n’est pas un
débat politique, je ne sais pas ce que ce sera. Vous m’avez dit que
les tribunaux décideraient. Je vous ai dit au commencement que
I’article 3 était inconstitutionnel, basé sur ce que je comprends des
articles 30 et 32 de la Charte des droits et libertés. Vous avez
répondu ne pas étre certain et je vous comprends. Avez-vous des
informations additionnelles & nous transmettre a ce sujet?

M. Tremblay: Quant a la constitutionnalité de I’article 3, on a
déja exprimé la position du gouvernement du Canada. L’article 3
est conforme. Ce que je dirais, par contre, c’est qu’on y lit bien
«pour les fins de cette loi». Pour les fins de la Loi sur les langues
officielles, les institutions fédérales sont telles que définies les
institutions qu’on y nomme et dont on traite. C’est pour les fins de
cette loi.

Cette loi a donc certaines fins et d’autres lois ont d’autres fins.
Le fait qu’'on ait défini dans la Loi sur les langues officielles sa
portée ne signifie pas nécessairement que tout y est. Tout ne doit
pas y étre. Il y a d’autres moyens de respecter la Constitution si,
comme vous le souhaitez, la cour venait a clarifier cette question
et a conclure a I’application, par exemple, de I’article 16 aux
Territoires. Cependant, il y aurait différents moyens de se
conformer a cette exigence constitutionnelle, dont la législation,
qui n’est qu'un moyen parmi tant d’autres. D’autre part, la
question est politique a plusieurs égards. Je I’ai déja mentionné, le
Parlement a défini dans la Loi sur les langues officielles ce qu’il
voulait inclure pour les fins de cette loi.

Est-ce qu’il aurait pu faire autre chose dans le champ de ses
compétences? Oui, il y a toujours d’autres questions qui peuvent
étre traitées. Il y a trés peu de lois, heureusement ou
malheureusement, qui sont complétes et a tout jamais arrétées.
S’il y avait une volonté politique pour faire autre chose,
effectivement, dans le champ de ces compétences, il y a une
marge pour le gouvernement du Canada.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Est-ce que la Loi sur les langues
officielles est quasi-constitutionnelle, M. Tremblay?

M. Tremblay: Tout a fait.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Merci beaucoup, messieurs Tremblay et
Newman, de votre patience et de bien vouloir discuter d’une
question qui est assez délicate pour vous en ce moment. Nous
vous sommes reconnaissants de nous avoir consacré votre temps.
Je pense que cet échange a été extrémement utile. Le travail va se
poursuivre sur la question trés bientot.

M. Newman: C’est toujours un plaisir et un honneur de
comparaitre devant votre comité pour discuter de ces questions.

Le vice-président: Honorables sénateurs, nous avons une
importante réunion prévue pour le 24 mars. Le sénateur Losier-
Cool aura alors repris le fauteuil de la présidence.
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Senator Gauthier: I understand that on March 12, the Minister
of Intergovernmental Affairs, Stéphane Dion, and the Prime
Minister will present their action plan.

[Translation]

We should invite Mr. Dion to explain his action plan at the
earliest opportunity, on March 24, a few days after its official
presentation. This would be a joint committee meeting with
invited MPs, held in a room that is a bit better suited for receiving
a minister than this one here. He would accomplish two things at
once; he would be testifying before both the Senate and the House
of Commons Official Languages Committee. That would be
constructive.

We need to establish some stringent standing orders so that
there will be no confusion as to who will chair. We are the Upper
Chamber. The Senate is doing the inviting, and, in my opinion,
the Senate should co-chair the meeting with the MPs. We shall
not be staying in the background. We should, Mr. Chairman,
proceed with this proposal.

[English)

The Deputy Chairman: Senators, at Senator Gauthier’s
suggestion, I did discuss this with Mr. Belanger, the chair of the
committee from the other place, and it was suggested that there
could be a joint meeting on March 24. However, the minister will
be meeting with Mr. Belanger’s committee on the March 17, so
the invitation from the Senate committee was extended to him to
appear on March 24. Perhaps Senator Gauthier has an update on
this.

As far as the conduct of the meeting is concerned,
Mr. Belanger felt that, if there were a joint meeting, it should
be chaired by the other place and that the people from the other
place should have the opportunity to ask questions first. Senator
Gauthier expressed the opinion to me that, since this is the senior
chamber of Parliament, the meeting should be at least jointly
chaired if not chaired by the Senate committee chairman. That
matter has not been resolved.

My latest information is that the minister will appear before
the committee of the other place on March 17 and before this
committee on March 24.

[Translation]

Senator Léger: I do not understand. We wanted a separate
Senate committee and now we are talking about establishing
standing orders to determine who will be speaking first or second.
I really do not see where you are coming from anymore.

Senator Gauthier: Senator Léger, we have never had standing
orders for a joint committee. I tried to have such regulations put
in place for years and I never succeeded. Parliament resumes its
activities on March 17 and I was told that the minister was
available on March 24. I suggested March 24 because I thought
that the ministers would not want to come here on March 17.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Je crois savoir que le 12 mars, le ministre
des Affaires intergouvernementales, Stéphane Dion, et le premier
ministre présenteront leur plan d’action.

[Frangais]

Nous devrions inviter M. Dion dans les plus bref délais pour
qu’il vienne expliquer son plan d’action, le 24 mars, soit quelques
jours apres sa présentation officielle. Ce comité serait tenu
conjointement avec les députés que nous inviterons dans une picce
un peu mieux aménagée que celle-ci pour rencontrer le ministre.
D’une pierre deux coups, il témoignerait au Comité des langues
officielles du Sénat et a celui de la Chambre des communes. Cela
serait constructif.

Il faudrait prévoir des réglements fermes pour ne pas créer de
confusion quant a savoir qui présidera. Nous sommes la Chambre
haute. C’est le Sénat qui invite et, selon moi, le Sénat devrait
coprésider la réunion avec les députés. Il n’est pas question de
rester en arriére. Nous devrions aller de lavant avec cette
proposition, monsieur le président.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Sénateur, a la suggestion du sénateur
Gauthier, j’en ai discuté avec M. Bélanger, président du comité
de I'autre endroit, et il a été proposé que nous ayons une réunion
mixte le 24 mars. Toutefois, le ministre va rencontrer le comité de
M. Bélanger le 17 mars et c’est pourquoi il a été invité a
comparaitre devant le comité du Sénat le 24 mars. Le sénateur
Gauthier a peut-étre des informations plus récentes a ce sujet.

Pour ce qui est de 'organisation de la réunion, M. Bélanger
pensait que, si nous devions avoir une réunion mixte, elle devrait
étre présidée par le représentant de l'autre endroit et que les
membres de I’autre endroit devraient avoir la possibilité de poser
leurs questions en premier. Le sénateur Gauthier m’a dit que,
puisque nous sommes la Chambre haute du Parlement, la réunion
devrait étre au moins coprésidée sinon présidée par le président du
comité du Sénat. La question n’est pas encore résolue.

D’apres les derniéres informations dont je dispose, le ministre
comparaitra devant le comité de 1’autre endroit le 17 mars et
devant le notre le 24 mars.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Léger: Je ne comprends pas. On voulait un comité
sénatorial séparé et maintenant on parle d’établir des réglements
pour déterminer qui parlera le premier ou qui parlera le deuxiéme.
Vraiment, je ne vous suis plus.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Sénateur Léger, un reglement pour un
comité mixte n’a jamais existé. Pendant des années j’ai essayé d’en
implanter un et je n’ai jamais réussi. Le 17 mars est la premiére
journée de la reprise des activités parlementaires et on m’avait dit
que le ministre était disponible le 24 mars. J’ai suggéré le 24 mars
parce que j’ai pensé que les ministres ne voudraient pas se
déplacer le 17 mars.
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Now I am told that Mr. Mauril Bélanger has invited Minister
Stéphane Dion to appear on March 17. 1 do not see any
difficulties in having people from the other place join us for this
meeting.

Senator Léger: Your argument pertains to dates. Mine pertains
to the fact that we are meeting as a joint committee and I do not
agree.

Senator Chaput: I am new to the Senate and have not
experienced a joint committee. But to keep things simple, since
we really do want to hear the minister and ask him questions,
I think that only the senators should hear him on March 24. That
is my suggestion.

Senator Maheu: | agree.
Senator Lapointe: I agree.
Senator Beaudoin: This will be a separate meeting?

Senator Comeau: Absolutely.

[English]

The Deputy Chairman: There seems to be a consensus that it
would be best to have the minister appear before this committee
on March 24; is that correct?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

[Translation)

Senator Gauthier: Today is February 24 and we are talking
about a meeting that will take place in a month’s time. The joint
committee used to meet twice a week. Now it is meeting only once
a month. It does not make sense. The issue at hand is far too
important and warrants more than one monthly meeting.

Senator Maheu: There is a reason for that.

Senator Beaudoin: I am sitting simultaneously on the Senate
Human Rights Committee and the Official Languages
Committee. I can tell you that I am always running.

[English)

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, may we deal with
the question of the meeting on March 24 and then come back to
the frequency of meetings?

There is also the question of television coverage, and we would
need to have a vote on that today.
[Translation]

Senator Gauthier: This is not serious. One meeting per month is
clearly inadequate.

Senator Comeau: I move the motion.

Senator Chaput: We have not yet dealt with the issue of
broadcasting.

On me dit maintenant que M. Mauril Bélanger a convoqué le
ministre Stéphane Dion le 17 mars. Je ne n’entrevois pas de
difficultés a ce que les gens de I’autre endroit se joignent a nous a
cette rencontre.

Le sénateur Léger: Votre argument repose sur des dates. Le
mien porte sur le fait qu’on se rencontre en comité mixte et je ne
suis pas d’accord.

Le sénateur Chaput: Etant nouvelle au Sénat, je n’ai pas vécu
I’expérience du comité mixte. Mais pour garder les choses simples,
puisqu’on veut vraiment entendre le ministre et lui poser des
questions, je crois que les sénateurs seulement devraient 'entendre
le 24 mars. C’est ma suggestion.

Le sénateur Maheu: Je suis d’accord.
Le sénateur Lapointe: Je suis d’accord.
Le sénateur Beaudoin: Ce sera une rencontre séparée?

Le sénateur Comeau: Absolument.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Je crois qu’il y a un consensus pour dire que
la meilleure date pour la comparution du ministre serait le
24 mars; c’est bien cela?

Des voix: Oui.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Gauthier: C’est aujourd’hui le 24 février et on parle
d’une réunion qui aura lieu dans un mois. Autrefois le comité
mixte se réunissait deux fois par semaine. Maintenant, elle ne se
tient qu'une fois par mois. Cela est insensé. Le sujet dont il est
question est beaucoup plus important et mérite plus d’une réunion
par mois.

Le sénateur Maheu: Il y a une raison a cela.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Je siége au comité sénatorial des droits
de la personne et au comité des langues officielles simultanément.
Je peux vous dire que je cours sans arrét.

[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Honorables sénateurs, pouvons-nous régler
la question de la réunion du 24 mars et revenir ensuite a la
fréquence des réunions?

Il y a aussi la question de la couverture télévisée, et il faudra
que nous votions a ce sujet aujourd’hui.
[Frangais)

Le sénateur Gauthier: Ce n’est pas sérieux. Une réunion par
mois c’est nettement insuffisant.

Le sénateur Comeau: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Chaput: On n’a pas encore traité de la question de
la radiodiffusion.
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[English]

Senator Beaudoin: We have two propositions on the table.

The Deputy Chairman: No, we have one. We are talking about
the meeting on March 24. I will come back to Senator Gauthier’s
proposition.

Senator Beaudoin: We agreed on the date of March 24.

The Deputy Chairman: We need a vote for television coverage
of that meeting. We have a mover.

The Deputy Chairman: We appear to have a consensus.

Senator Beaudoin: For or against?

The Deputy Chairman: Everyone in favour of television
coverage?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Deputy Chairman: That is taken care of.

Senator Gauthier: You do not need a seconder in a committee.

[Translation)

Senator Lapointe: Can we vote? Is the committee making a
majority or a minority decision?

Senator Beaudoin: Of course.

Senator Comeau: There is a consensus.

Senator Maheu: There is a consensus.

Senator Lapointe: Would you please put the question of
televising debates to a vote?
[English)

The Deputy Chairman: I will put the question. Those in favour
of televising the meeting, please say “yea.”

Some Hon. Senators: “Yea.”

The Deputy Chairman: Those opposed to televising the
meeting, please say “nay.”

Some Hon. Senators: “Nay.”

Senator Léger: I may want to abstain since I believe that we
have not discussed it enough. I would vote “nay.”

The Deputy Chairman: We have a very close vote here. We will
record the vote because it is close.

Senator Beaudoin: Has the vote been taken?

[Translation]
Senator Lapointe: I will give you my opinion.

Senator Beaudoin: I would really like to hear Senator
Lapointe’s opinion.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Nous avons deux propositions sur la
table.

Le vice-président: Non, nous n’en avons qu’une. Nous parlons
de la réunion du 24 mars. Je vais revenir ensuite a la proposition
du sénateur Gauthier.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Mais nous avons déja décidé de la date
du 24 mars.

Le vice-président: Il nous faut un vote pour la couverture
télévisée de cette réunion. La motion est proposée.

Le vice-président: J’ai I'impression que nous avons un
consensus.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Pour ou contre?

Le vice-président: Est-ce que tout le monde est pour une
couverture télévisée?

Des voix: Oui.

Le vice-président: C’est réglé.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Vous n’avez pas besoin de quelqu’un
pour appuyer la motion en comité.
[Frangais)

Le sénateur Lapointe: Peut-on voter? Le comité prend une
décision majoritaire ou minoritaire?

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Bien sir.

Le sénateur Comeau: Il y a consensus.

Le sénateur Maheu: Il y a consensus.

Le sénateur Lapointe: Voulez-vous s’il vous plait mettre la
question aux voix quant a la proposition de téléviser les débats?
[Traduction]

Le vice-président: Je vais procéder au vote. Que ceux qui sont
en faveur d’une télédiffusion de la réunion veuillent bien dire oui.

Des voix: Oui.

Le vice-président: Que ceux qui sont contre veuillent bien dire
non.

Des voix: Non.

Le sénateur Léger: J’ai tendance a m’abstenir parce que je
pense que nous n’en avons pas assez discuté. Je voterai non.

Le vice-président: Le vote est trés serré. Nous allons procéder a
un vote par appel nominal car c’est trés serré.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Nous avons voté?

[Frangais)
Le sénateur Lapointe: Je vais vous donner mon avis.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: J’aimerais bien entendre I’avis du
sénateur Lapointe.
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Senator Lapointe: Senators Léger, Chaput and myself are new
members of this committee. I note that it is always the same two
individuals who predominate. This is their privilege and I do not
envy them in the least since they have a great deal of experience.
One is a very highly respected legal expert and the other is an
ardent advocate of the French language.

Given the circumstances, what would the people who don’t say
anything because they are new to the file look like? I am not
talking on behalf of the experts. Personally, I think that we may
look like imbeciles on television, as we wait for an opportunity to
ask a question which, in addition, may sound ridiculous. If I had
asked a question earlier, it is highly likely that I would have put
my foot in my mouth. That is why I did not ask a question.

I strongly believe that constitutional matters are of no interest
to anyone except for those people who are directly involved in the
file. I also think that if a debate becomes too complicated, the
average Joe will not be able to follow it on the parliamentary
channel. For debates of general interest, I would be in agreement.

If you want a debate amongst experienced people, tell me, and
I will not attend the committee.

Senator Léger: I agree with Senator Lapointe that this is not at
all about transparency. I was appointed senator to represent
minorities and that is what we are doing, without being big
experts. However, a lot of things do turn into big issues and I
cannot get involved in that. The whole country does not have to
know that. I often find that all we do here is argue.

I see no interest in having the entire country witness the
squabbling that goes on at the House of Commons. I do not
agree.

Senator Comeau: I fully agree with Senator Lapointe. I was
reluctant to ask legal and constitutional questions this afternoon.
However, the Dion plan is a ministerial plan, it’s a bit different.

Senator Léger made a very good point; our committee must
study this matter meticulously. Recently, the committee has gone
off in a direction that I did not expect. At times there is
squabbling, decisions are made when some of us are not here. |
am fully aware of the fact that those who are absent are always in
the wrong.

Two weeks ago, I had to have surgery and I was not able to get
to the meeting. However, I read the minutes and they confirmed
that the viewpoint of those who do not show up never prevails. |
accept that.

However, we must be very careful not to make decisions that
may harm the smooth operation of the committee. This
committee could work very well. We could do some good
things. But if we make decisions that lead to squabbling, decisions
where some members are not involved, where we find out that the

Le sénateur Lapointe: Les sénateurs Léger, Chaput et moi-
méme sommes de nouveaux membres a ce comité. Je remarque
que ce sont les mémes deux personnes qui ont 'avantage de
prendre beaucoup de place. Ce privilége leur revient et je ne les
envie pas du tout puisqu’ils ont beaucoup d’expérience. L’un est
un juriste trés respecté et 1'autre est un ardent défenseur de la
langue frangaise.

Dans un tel cas, de quoi auraient l'air ceux qui ne se
prononcent pas parce qu’ils sont nouveaux dans le dossier? Je
ne parle pas au nom des experts. Personnellement, je crois que
nous pourrions avoir I’air imbéciles a la télévision en attendant
Iopportunité de poser une question qui, au surplus, pourrait
avoir I'air ridicule. Si j’avais posé une question tant6t, il y aurait
eu de grosses chances que je me serais mis les pieds dans les plats.
C’est pourquoi je me suis abstenu de le faire.

Je crois fortement qu’une question d’ordre constitutionnel
n’intéresse personne a part ceux qui sont directement plongés
dans le dossier. Je crois aussi que si un débat devient trop
complexe, le commun des mortels ne le suivra pas sur la chaine
parlementaire. Pour des débats d’intérét général, je serais
d’accord.

Si on ne veut débattre qu’entre gens d’expérience, qu’on me le
dise, je n’assisterai pas au comité.

Le sénateur Léger: Je suis d’accord avec le sénateur Lapointe
pour dire que ce n’est pas du tout une question de transparence.
On m’a nommée sénateur pour représenter les minorités et c’est ce
qu’on fait, sans étre des grands spécialistes. Or, il y a bien des
choses qui deviennent grandes et moi je ne peux pas partager cela.
Ce n’est pas nécessaire que le pays en entier sache cela. Souvent, je
trouve qu’ici on se chicane, point.

Je ne vois pas l'intérét que tout le pays voit les chicanes de la
Chambre des communes. Je ne suis pas d’accord.

Le sénateur Comeau: Je suis entiérement d’accord avec le
sénateur Lapointe. J’ai hésité a poser des questions juridiques et
constitutionnelles cet aprés-midi. Par contre, le plan Dion, c’est
un plan de ministre, c’est un peu différent.

Le sénateur Léger a soulevé un trés bon point: notre comité
doit étudier méticuleusement cette affaire. Dernierement le comité
est parti dans une direction que je ne m’attendais pas. Ce sont des
chicanes parfois, des décisions sont prises lorsque certains d’entre
nous ne sont pas présents. Je comprends bien que les absents ont
tort.

Il y a deux semaines, j’ai di avoir une intervention médicale et
je n’ai pas pu me rendre a la réunion. Par contre, j’ai lu le compte
rendu voulant que les absents ont tort. J’accepte cela.

Par contre, nous devons étre trés prudents pour ne pas prendre
des décisions qui peuvent nuire a la bonne marche du comité. Ce
comité pourrait trés bien fonctionner. Nous pourrions faire de
bonnes choses. Mais si nous devons prendre des décisions qui
soulévent de la chicane, des décisions ou les membres ne sont pas
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decision has already been made, that due process has not been
followed, we will wind up with a committee that does not work.

We must be cautious. We have headed off in the wrong
direction. There have been some interventions and decisions that
could jeopardize the smooth operation of the committee. I would
like this committee to work. I was strongly in favour of
establishing this committee because the other committee was
not operating well. Let us not wind up with a new Senate
committee where the same things may happen.

[English)

Senator Maheu: Having sat on both committees and having
seen what has happened and what can happen, [ would be against
televising all of our committees. I would, however, be in favour of
televising the appearances of ministers, of Ms. Adam, the
Commissioner of Official Languages and very special guests.

[Translation]

As for our regular meetings, I agree with my three colleagues
who have spoken. Too many things have happened for it to be
published every time.

[English)

The Deputy Chairman: At the next meeting, when Senator
Losier-Cool will be here, some real time must be devoted to a
discussion of process. The opinion appears to be divided. Perhaps
we should revisit whether we televise Minister Dion’s visit or not.
The vote was very close.

Senator Lapointe: I suggest that we ask our chairman, Senator
Losier-Cool, her opinion on that. She may prefer to delay or she
may want a decision. That is intended to be an insult to our
Deputy Chairman, it is just that we should not take a decision of
that importance without our chairman being advised.

If she wants our meetings to be televised, then that is fine. I am
neither against nor for it. Mr. Dion and Ms. Copps will both be
appearing. I do not believe this is a matter of interest to the
public.

The Deputy Chairman: The recommendation of Senator Losier-
Cool to the committee is that the visit of Minister Dion be
televised but that, at the end of each committee, a decision be
taken as to whether the next committee meeting will be televised.

Senator Beaudoin: This is a very special meeting. We have
technical issues to discuss, as well as the question of the trial and
the legislative and juridical processes. Rarely do we have
discussions like that here. To my knowledge, it is once in every
five or ten years. Perhaps our next meeting should be conducted
as we have done today. I have nothing against televising our
proceedings, but I can understand the concerns of some
honourable senators. Perhaps, in a case like this one, where the
subject matter is very technical, we should not televise our
meeting. I am of the view that in normal circumstances we should
televise our proceedings.

impliqués, nous apprenons que la décision est déja prise, les
normes n’ont pas été appliquées, nous allons arriver a un comité
qui ne fonctionnera pas.

Soyons prudents. Nous sommes partis dans la mauvaise
direction. Il y a eu quelques interventions et quelques décisions
qui pourraient nuire a la bonne marche de ce comité. J’aimerais
que ce comité fonctionne. J’ai appuyé fortement la création de ce
comité parce que 'autre comité ne fonctionnait pas. N’arrivons
pas avec un nouveau comité sénatorial ou il pourrait arriver les
mémes choses.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Maheu: Ayant siégé aux deux comités et vu ce qui
se passe et ce qui peut arriver, je serais contre la télédiffusion de
tous nos comités. Toutefois, je serais d’accord pour avoir la
télévision quand nous accueillons des ministres, Mme Adam, la
commissaire aux langues officielles, et d’autres invités de marque.

[Frangais]

Mais quant a nos réunions habituelles, je suis d’accord avec
mes trois collégues qui ont parlé. Il s’est passé trop de choses pour
que ce soit publié¢ a chaque fois.

[Traduction)

Le vice-président: A notre prochaine réunion, quand le sénateur
Losier-Cool sera la, il faudra discuter sérieusement de la
procédure. Les avis sont partagés. Peut-étre devrions-nous
revenir sur la question de savoir si nous allons télédiffuser ou
non la comparution du ministre Dion. Le vote était trés serré.

Le sénateur Lapointe: Je vous propose de demander son
opinion a notre présidente, le sénateur Losier-Cool. Elle préférera
peut-étre reporter la question ou elle souhaitera peut-étre
trancher. I ne s’agit nullement d’offenser notre vice-président,
c’est simplement que nous ne devrions pas prendre une décision
de cette importance sans en informer notre présidente.

Si elle veut que la séance soit télévisée, c’est parfait. Je ne suis ni
pour ni contre. M. Dion et Mme Copps vont comparaitre tous les
deux. Je ne pense pas que cela intéresse beaucoup le public.

Le vice-président: Ce que recommande le sénateur Losier-Cool
au comité, c’est que la comparution du ministre Dion soit
télévisée mais qu’a la fin de chaque comité, nous décidions si le
comité suivant sera ou non télévisé.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Cette réunion-ci est bien particuliere.
Nous devons discuter de questions plutdt techniques, ainsi que du
procés et des procédures législatives judiciaires. Il est rare que
nous ayons de telles discussions. A ma connaissance, cela ne se
fait que tous les cinq ou dix ans. Peut-étre que notre prochaine
séance devrait étre organisée comme celle d’aujourd’hui. Je n’ai
rien contre la télédiffusion de nos travaux, mais je comprends les
préoccupations de certains sénateurs. Lors de I’étude d’un sujet
trés technique comme celui-ci, nos travaux ne devraient peut-étre
pas étre télévisés. En temps normal, toutefois, j’estime qu’il est
tout a fait indiqué de le faire.
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The Deputy Chairman: Senator Losier-Cool, the chair, has
presented a good solution, at least for the time being. We should
decide at the end of each meeting whether we want to televise the
next one.

Senator Lapointe: I am in total agreement with that.

The Deputy Chairman: That brings us back to the meeting of
March 24. We need a decision about televising. The chair is in
agreement with televising. Is there agreement to televise?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Deputy Chairman: We have agreement on that.

We must move now to the subject of the frequency of meetings.
I recommend that this subject be deferred until the meeting of
March 24 when the chairman will be here.

Senator Gauthier: If we continue to put this issue off, it will be
Easter and we will be into the spring session without a decision. |
do not agree that we should put this issue off. We have important
issues before us. The minorities asked for these issues to be looked
at by the Senate, and this committee must comply with its
mandate. People have voiced their objections. However, I do not
agree that we should hold one meeting a month at 4:00 o’clock in
the afternoon. That is a farce. Some people want this issue settled.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators have heard the
strong opinion that we should discuss this right now and not wait
until March 24. T will invite discussion about the frequency of
meetings.

[Translation]

Senator Lapointe: The current situation is rare. The chair of
this committee has had an accident, she is absent. She is coming
back on March 24. T think that we should wait until the chair
comes back before making any decisions on the frequency of the
meetings.

Senator Comeau: I agree. I feel that our chair should be
involved in this important decision. The chair comes from New
Brunswick and this is not easy.

This is all right for people who live in Ottawa or who live half
an hour away. It takes me seven hours to travel to my office, in
Ottawa. Do you understand? Think about it a little bit. Seven
hours, that is a little bit different.

Senator Gauthier has suggested that our meetings be held
earlier in the day. That is all right when you live in Ottawa, when
you are seven minutes away. If the weather is good, it takes me
seven hours to get here. But with winters like the one we have just
experienced this year, we are not talking about seven hours but
10, 11, and even 12 hours to get to Ottawa. I have to leave my
family on Sunday in order to be here by 4:00 p.m. on Monday. |
am sorry, but there are other things in life aside from spending my
day travelling on Sunday in order to attend meetings of the
Official Languages Committee. I realize that the committee is

Le vice-président: La présidente, le sénateur Losier-Cool, nous
a fait une bonne suggestion, du moins pour l'instant. A la fin de
chaque réunion, nous pourrions décider si nous voulons que la
suivante soit télévisée.

Le sénateur Lapointe: Je suis d’accord.

Le vice-président: Ca nous rameéne a la séance du 24 mars.
Nous devons nous prononcer sur la télédiffusion. La présidente
est d’accord pour que cette réunion soit télédiffusée. Sommes-
nous d’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le vice-président: C’est convenu.

Passons maintenant a la fréquence des réunions. Je
recommande que ’on reporte cette discussion au 24 mars, date
a laquelle la présidente sera 1a.

Le sénateur Gauthier: Si nous continuons de reporter la
discussion sur ce sujet, nous en serons a Paques et a la session
du printemps et nous n’aurons pas encore pris de décision. Je crois
que nous devrions trancher. Nous devons nous pencher sur des
questions importantes. Les minorités ont demandé au Sénat
d’examiner ces questions et notre comité doit respecter son
mandat. Certains ont exprimé des objections. Pour ma part, je ne
suis pas d’accord pour qu’il n’y ait qu'une réunion par mois a
16 heures. C’est grotesque. Le temps est venu de régler cette
question.

Le vice-président: Notre collégue est fermement convaincu que
nous devrions discuter de cette question dés maintenant, et ne pas
attendre le 24 mars. Je vous invite donc a faire vos remarques sur
la fréquence de nos réunions.

[Frangais)

Le sénateur Lapointe: La situation actuelle est rare. La
présidente de ce comité a eu un accident, elle est absente. Elle
revient le 24 mars. A partir de 14 8’il y a des décisions a prendre
quand a la fréquence des réunions, je crois qu’il ne faudrait pas
que ce soit fait avant le retour de la présidente.

Le sénateur Comeau: Je suis d’accord. Selon moi, notre
présidente devrait étre partie prenante a cette décision trés
importante. La présidente vient du Nouveau-Brunswick et ce
n’est pas facile.

Pour les gens qui demeurent, a Ottawa, ou qui sont a une demi-
heure de leur maison cela fonctionne. Il me faut sept heures pour
me rendre a mon bureau, a Ottawa. Comprenez cela. Pensez-y un
petit peu. Sept heures, c’est un petit peu différent.

Le sénateur Gauthier suggére que nous tenions nos réunions
plus tot dans la journée. Cela fonctionne bien lorsqu’on demeure
a Ottawa, a sept minutes. Si la température est clémente, il me
faut sept heures pour me rendre ici. Des hivers comme celui qu’on
connait cette année, on ne parle plus de sept heures mais de
10, 11 et méme 12 heures pour me rendre a Ottawa. Pour étre ici
avant 16 heures de lundi, je dois partir et laisser ma famille le
dimanche. Je regrette, mais il y a autre chose dans la vie que de
voyager le dimanche afin d’étre présent a des réunions du comité
des langues officielles. Je suis conscient que le comité est
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important, but Sundays are sacred to me. We should think about
this. Our chair is in a similar situation and she must have
something to say on the issue.

[English)

Senator Maheu: | totally agree with Senator Comeau.

[Translation]

Senator Losier-Cool is already feeling bad because she has
missed meetings due to her accident. We should wait for her to
come back on March 24. I have some comments to make on the
issue and it does not matter to me whether or not I do this today
or at the meeting on March 24. However, I would prefer our chair
to be here.

Senator Chaput: I would like to show some respect for the chair
who is not here today and I would prefer to wait until she is in
attendance to discuss the matter with her. I honestly believe that
the Official Languages Committee should meet twice a month.
The subject is very important.

I come from Manitoba and, in order to attend the Monday
meeting, I have to leave my home on Sunday evening. I am
prepared to do this every second week because this committee is
very important. I am also prepared to wait until the chair is in
attendance so that we can discuss the matter with her.

Senator Lapointe: Senator Chaput, was it explained to you
that, in the case of weekly meetings, one out of the two meetings is
mandatory? If you want to attend two meetings per month, you
can do so.

Senator Chaput: I was not aware of that

[English)

Senator Léger: I am definitely in favour of waiting for Senator
Losier-Cool, for the same reasons that have been given.

Senator Beaudoin: It is not a problem for me.

The Deputy Chairman: That makes five senators who wish to
wait for the appointed chair to be part of this discussion, so the
matter is closed.

The committee adjourned.

important, mais pour moi, les dimanches, c’est sacré. On doit y
penser. Notre présidente est dans une situation semblable et elle
devrait avoir quelque chose a dire a ce sujet.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Maheu: J’abonde dans le méme sens que le sénateur
Comeau.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Losier-Cool a déja du chagrin parce qu’elle rate
des réunions en raison de son accident. On devrait attendre qu’elle
revienne le 24 mars prochain. J’ai des interventions a faire sur le
sujet et que je les fasse aujourd’hui ou a la réunion du 24 mars
prochain ne m’importe pas. Par contre, je préfére que notre
présidente soit ici.

Le sénateur Chaput: Je voudrais traiter avec respect la
présidente qui n’est pas ici aujourd’hui et je préférerais attendre
qu’elle soit présente pour en discuter avec elle. Je crois
honnétement que le groupe de travail des langues officielles
devrait se rencontrer deux fois par mois. Le sujet est trés
important.

Je viens du Manitoba et pour assister a la réunion du lundi, je
dois partir le dimanche soir de chez moi. Je suis préte a le faire
toutes les deux semaines parce que ce comité est trés important. Je
suis aussi préte a attendre la présence de la présidente pour qu’on
puisse en discuter avec elle.

Le sénateur Lapointe: Sénateur Chaput, vous a-t-on expliqué
qu’il y avait des réunions toutes les semaines dont une sur deux est
obligatoire? Si vous voulez participer a deux réunions par mois,
vous pouvez le faire.

Le sénateur Chaput: Je n’étais pas consciente de cela.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Léger: Moi aussi, je crois que nous devrions
attendre que le sénateur Losier-Cool soit présente, pour les
raisons qui ont déja été données.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Je n’y vois pas d’objection.

Le vice-président: Cing sénateurs souhaitent que la présidente
participe a cette discussion. Par conséquent, I'affaire est close
pour aujourd’hui.

La séance est levée.




MAIL > POSTE

Canada Post Corporation/Société canadienne des postes

Postage paid Poste-payé
Lettermail Poste-lettre

1782711
OTTAWA

If undelivered, return COVER ONLY to:

Public Works and Government Services Canada —
Publishing and Depository Services
Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0S5

En cas de non-livraison,
retourner cette COUVERTURE SEULEMENT a:

Travaux publics et Services gouvernementaux Canada —
Les Editions et Services de dépot
Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0S5

WITNESSES TEMOINS
From the Department of Justice: Du ministere de la Justice:
Marc Tremblay, General Counsel and Director, Official Languages Marc Tremblay, Avocat général et directeur, Groupe du droit des
Law Group; langues officielles;
Warren J. Newman, General Counsel, Constitutional and Warren J. Newman, Avocat général, Section du droit administratif
Administrative Law Section. et constitutionnel.
Available from: Disponible auprés des:
PWGSC — Publishing and Depository Services TPGSC - Les Editions et Services de dépot
Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0S5 Ottawa (Ontario) K1A 0S5

Also available on the Internet: http://www.parl.gc.ca Aussi disponible sur internet: http://www.parl.gc.ca



